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DELINQUENT TAX BALANCES AS OF JUNE 30,2024
(* INDICATES PAYMENT AFTER THAT DATE AND PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024)

NAME ACCT 23/24 * 22/23 * PRIOR *
1270 ROOSEVELT TRAIL PROP LLC 2984 $637.54 *
1270 ROOSEVELT TRAIL PROP LLC 2985 $1,656.31 **
27 SHORE ROAD LLC 3782 $361.11
53 VISTA ROAD LLC 1978 $597.77 *
AASKOV BRIAN D 2800 $190.80 *
AKELEY LEE B 1937 $1,566.69
ANDERSON MANDY L 983 $2,149.68
ANGELL EDMUND A 479 $1,023.47
ARKALA LLC 3531 $90.69
BEAR PROPERTIES LLC 2913 $95.40 *
BEAR PROPERTIES LLC 2966 $436.45 *
BERGMAN GUNARD ERIK 2824 $76.32 *
BERSCH RAYMOND 1260 $2,282.44 *
BICKFORD DANIEL W 370 $2,315.82 *
BORAS SUZANNE 2589 $2,081.31
BORAS SUZANNE 2732 $955.59
BOYLE JAMES 2469 $2,203.79 *
BRIDGES JARRED S 2650 $133.56
BRIDGES JARRED S 2659 $4,652.51
BROWN JEFFREY S 1900 $300.00 *
BRUM WHITNEY A 296 $3,733.32 $3,046.19
BUCKHOFF JANE E 1838 $519.93 *
BURNELL DARREN PERSONAL REP 1208 $290.97 $348.68
BURNELL NANCY E 1206 $1,375.50
BUXTON MARK A 964 $1,742.64
CAREY JR WILLIAM MICHAEL 1006 $448.91
CARRINGTON MORTGAGE SERVICE 2988 $1,512.09 *
CARROLL JAMES E 2873 $190.80
CARROLL JAMES E 2971 $858.60
CAYER PATRICK R 1653 $454.74 *
CHANDLER CHRIS 1462 $2,457.34
CHAPMAN WILLIAM 1621 $2,559.79
CHASE BRANDON 197 $712.32 *
CHASE HOLDINGS LLC 378 $430.89 *
CHASE HOLDINGS LLC 379 $438.84
CHASE HOLDINGS LLC 380 $435.66
CHASE HOLDINGS LLC 383 $426.12
CHASE HOLDINGS LLC 387 $384.78
CHASE HOLDINGS LLC 390 $387.96
CHASE HOLDINGS LLC 392 $429.30
CHASE HOLDINGS LLC 402 $413.40
CHUTE DEBORAH 1575 $934.92 $969.73

REAL ESTATE TAXES



DELINQUENT TAX BALANCES AS OF JUNE 30,2024
(* INDICATES PAYMENT AFTER THAT DATE AND PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024)

CIGRI LAURA L 704 $655.00 *
CLARK CARYN J 161 $1,690.17
CLARKE KATHLEEN MARIE 3817 $3,744.45 * $3,679.34 * $3,506.99 *
COHEN RICHARD S 883 $4,838.10 *
COLE DENNIS J 803 $1,268.18 *
COLE PATRICIA 1171 $130.38
COLIN CHRISTIE 574 $1,340.37
CONLEY ROBERT N PERSON IN 1310 $1,955.70 $1,954.20 $7,925.92
COPPERSMITH ANDREW M 518 $2,845.40
CORRIGAN GREGORY T 2070 $1,739.01
COTY EDNA (HEIRS) 3721 $20.97 *
COWENS MEGHAN 3261 $1,100.00
COX JEFFREY PERSON IN 3092 $7,407.81 $7,212.41 $8,109.29
CULPOVICH ANDREW J 1638 $1,412.71
CURTIS CHASE 3161 $8,879.35 *
CURTIS FRANK P II PIP 1273 $4,068.81 $986.58 *
DANIE VERONICA L 2609 $859.66 *
DAVIN CHERYL B TRUSTEE 3549 $4,023.49 *
DEVEAU ADAM J 77 $95.88
DIPALMA SUSAN 1942 $1,981.71
DIPIETRO STEVEN 3198 $4,283.46 $4,199.18
DIPRIZIO FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST 3536 $1,397.61 *
DOLLOFF C RICHARD 575 $3,141.84 $3,039.28
DONAHUE DOUGLAS A JR 2233 $10,281.73 *
DORIES COTTAGE LLC 1272 $2,478.01
DRESSER II DANA W & HEATHER R 124 $10,932.84 $5,458.74
DRESSER II DANA W & HEATHER R 3857 $31,714.14 $15,705.45
DRIES ROLFE H 3360 $3,455.07 *
DUDLEY SHAUN R 685 $723.45
DUNN ETER 3396 $12,198.48 *
DUNOLLIE TRUST DTD 08/05/2020 267 $3,226.11 *
EARLE ENTERPRISES LLC 2431 $2,121.00 *
ESTEY IMELDA A -TRUSTEE 3778 $2,329.35
FLYNN ROBERT P & SON INC 2330 $1,950.93 *
FOLEY MICHAEL THOMAS 2651 $351.39 *
FOLEY MICHAEL THOMAS 2658 $2,111.52 *
FRANK ERICA 1148 $89.20
FROST RANDALL T TRUSTEE 42 $1,877.79 *
GALLAGHER RALPH A 2886 $5.39
GARDNER SCOTT RUSSELL 682 $369.67
GIDEON DEBORAH 1100 $87.45
GIFFORD CHARLES H HEIRS 2328 $44.52
GODWIN PAUL R 1136 $1,755.00
GRAY KEVIN 1689 $752.86 *



DELINQUENT TAX BALANCES AS OF JUNE 30,2024
(* INDICATES PAYMENT AFTER THAT DATE AND PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024)

GRONDIN ROBERT & SUSAN TRUSTEES 2997 $1,068.11 *
GRONDIN ROBERT J SR 2788 $128.98 *
GRONDIN SUSAN & ROBERT TRUSTEE 3164 $7,523.91 *
HAFNER BRUCE R 1268 $269.09 *
HAM WILLIAM 3094 $3,820.77 *
HAMMOND LISA A 1897 $121.29 *
HANSEN JON 2182 $4,460.74 *
HARMON PAUL 1746 $1,332.42 *
HAWKES LESLIE 2276 $3,189.54 *
HERMANSEN STEPHEN M 880 $2,087.67
HOME CONSTRUCTION & FINANCING 1856 $669.39 *
HUNTINGTON ADRIENNE 3596 $1,316.67
HURD BETH-ANN 1334 $1,220.96
JACOBSON MICHELLE D 3651 $139.92
JAMES B MCVEIGH TRUST 2108 $1,407.15 *
JOHNSON DONALD 6 $3,903.45 $3,832.68
JORDAN RICHARD D 2861 $2,077.76
K J BANCROFT LLC/PLUMMER RALPH A 335 $351.39
KENDALL MARGARET 2616 $1,512.05 *
KNIGHT CHARLES B JR 968 $1,187.73 $392.71
KNOWLTON SAMUAL H 2668 $197.16 *
KNOWLTON SAMUAL H 2689 $3,769.89 *
KOSTICZAK JOHN 2585 $1,137.75 *
KPKV REALTY TRUST 2095 $1,882.80
KRAUTER BEN 734 $2,812.71 $2,019.48
LACHANCE GREGORY M 2274 $1,913.25 *
LAKE CABINS LLC 1012 $48.06
LAM NOMINEE TRUST 3309 $6,652.38 *
LAPRISE COLEEN P 1137 $9.11 *
LEWIS BONNIE L 94 $13,098.00
LIBBY RUSSEL A 596 $3,306.44 *
LOWELLS RETREAT LLC 3428 $3,183.25 *
MAIETTS NEIL L 3755 $2,745.39 *
MARCUS LARRY M 896 $3,291.59 *
MARIER PIERRE M 825 $2,329.35 $1,358.91
MARSTON JARED J PIP 1695 $2,745.93
MARTIN DUSTIN 2641 $44.32 *
MASH NELSON PIP 3749 $3,146.61 $3,102.76 $4,526.92
MASON SALLY J 1089 $821.24 *
MASON SEAN P 2552 $1,090.41 *
MASONRY BY MAINS INC 2733274 $360.13 *
MASTRANGELO JAMES TRUSTEE 3731 $161.28
MAXIMUIM DAWG LLC 1768 $1,412.71
MCGARRY SALLY R 3349 $6,808.38 *



DELINQUENT TAX BALANCES AS OF JUNE 30,2024
(* INDICATES PAYMENT AFTER THAT DATE AND PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024)

MESERVE NORMA J 1722 $1,373.76 $1,304.19
MESERVE ROBERTA 1724 $1,522.47
MILLER FREDERICK S II 3737 $758.43
MILLETT LYNNE E 720 $355.36 *
MOORE ELLIS O 3547 $3,610.09 *
MORRIS DEBORAH 1764 $887.53
MURRAY ROBERT F 3785 $190.80 *
OAK HILL PROPERTIES LLC 2133342 $783.87 *
OBRION JAMES J III 2678 $1,820.88 *
OBRION JAMES J III 2679 $2,195.79 *
ORSINI MICHAEL R 1667 $2,293.30 *
OWEN ROBIN 446 $4,145.13
PANTER PEGGY E 3781 $842.81 *
PANTHER IRREVOCABLE TRUST 2235 $4,611.79
PARSONS SUSAN B 3129 $980.10 *
PAYNE ROBERT A JR 1576 $619.30 *
PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE OFBOULLIE  356 $1,839.63 *
PETERSON ERIC T 605 $3,725.37 *
PETERSON VICTOR M 1577 $4,025.88 $1,601.65 *
PIERPONT RICHARD R JR 2687 $1,908.00
PIKE BRUCE 2232 $3,503.56 *
PLUMMER ALTON S 1342 $659.64 *
PLUMMER RICHARD C 1564 $344.13
POTVIN DIANE G 21333426 $3,472.56 *
POWELL ANDREA D 2444 $3,245.19 $1,617.77 *
PROCTOR CATHLEEN M 1528 $1,567.74 * $1,580.05
PULIERIS ROBERT I 539 $1,078.50 *
PULLEN NORMAN 25 $32.06 *
PULSONI MARK T PERSONAL REP 3797 $1,415.10 *
RADIODETECTION LLC 337 $97.24
RANDLETT KIRK G 3801 $2,730.82 *
RAYMOND MARINE & RECREATION LLC 241 $6.40
RE VENTURES LLC 1471 $2,563.08
RICHARDS DWAINE P 3681 $1,522.42
RIDEOUT LAWRENCE M 1512 $1,252.92 $1,276.42 $2,058.63
RILEY CINDY ANNE 681 $144.46 *
RINES/THOMPSON SEBAGP REALTY TRUS 3619 $11.05 *
RISBARA MICHAEL C 2930 $774.02 *
ROBERTS JONATHAN WHITNEY 1986 $278.97 *
ROBINSON A  (50%) 998 $1,231.84 *
ROOS HAROLD JR 826 $5,266.08 $2,299.42
SAINT EIBOHS COVE INC 3706 $6,048.36 *
SANBORN ERYN L 1514 $9.85 *
SAVOIE JAMES M 2780 $314.82 $168.33



DELINQUENT TAX BALANCES AS OF JUNE 30,2024
(* INDICATES PAYMENT AFTER THAT DATE AND PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024)

SCHERMERHORN ROBERT M 3700 $2,115.01
SCHERMERHORN ROBERT M 3718 $351.39
SHAW JANET 3285 $1,097.89
SHAW JANET E 90 $313.23
SHUBERT LINDA J 1987 $3,202.26 *
SIEGEL JEFF S 3653 $2,058.25
SIMEONE DANIEL J 1228 $141.83
SMALL JENNIFER M 967 $520.72
SMITHNER NANCY P 2397 $1,853.94 *
SOMERS JOHN F 3331 $524.70 *
SORENSON WALTER F JR 2750 $4,334.34 $1,432.59
SOULE CHRISTOPHER M 571 $1,273.59
SOUTHERN MAINE CONSTRUCTION LLC 3821 $876.09 $351.87
SPEEDY STOP LAND HOLDINGS LLC 3119 $10,198.26
SPERBER ROGER M 3350 $6,309.12 *
SPINNER WALTER L 2928 $2,073.36 $1,058.17 *
SPX CORPORATION 357 $249.67
STEIN AMBER C H 3537 $394.32
STILES KEITH L 2878 $190.80 *
STILES KEITH L 2947 $1,985.91 *
STROM EVAN 1504 $2,111.52 *
STUART CLARK D 832 $5,636.55 $5,504.14
STUART CLARK D 836 $138.33 $201.47
STUTZMAN ELIZABETH SOMERS 3330 $451.56
THE DOROW FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 2097 $1,859.50 *
THE NEUMANN-HERNSDORF CHILDREN T  2249 $10.13 *
THE ROBERT J GOLD TRUST DTD 02/27/19 3492 $4,461.54 *
THE WILLIAM ST JOHN 2021 TRUST 1247 $4,467.90 $4,377.06 $3,750.60
THOMAS& SALLY MCLAIN REVOCABLE TR 724 $5,037.91
THOMAS ANNE 3345 $4,337.25
THOMAS ANNE M 3341 $220.21
THORNE SIDNEY A JR PERSON IN 1401 $6,484.02 $6,321.48 $7,580.19
THORNE SIDNEY A JR PERSON IN 3074 $973.08 $1,006.53 $1,347.21
TRIPP ARCHIE L 1545 $1,512.88 *
VARNEY RANDALL S 3136 $769.91 *
VARNEY RANDI-LYNN 887 $3,032.22
VENKAUSKAS DANIEL R 1550 $1,455.86 *
VIERLING DONALD 2222 $1,325.13 *
VIERRA JOHN JR 2136 $120.38
VINING DUSTIN L 1155 $423.73 *
WALLACE FAMILY LAND TRUST 3704 $4,059.27 *
WALLACE FAMILY LAND TRUST 3715 $1,850.76 *
WARREN DAVID E & SANDRA J TRUSTEE 206 $593.86 *
WEEKS RUTH M 2127 $3,599.76 $3,548.33 $19,135.09



DELINQUENT TAX BALANCES AS OF JUNE 30,2024
(* INDICATES PAYMENT AFTER THAT DATE AND PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024)

WHELAN FAMILY TRUST 9 $1,856.32 *
WILLIAMS KENNETH M 3551 $4,055.29 *
WILLIAMSON JOHN J 1979 $3,353.31 $2,819.79
WILSON JEREMY R 1855 $1,705.27 *
WINDE CODY R 3137 $1,917.54
WOOD CAROLYN 2053 2053 $1,809.42 *
ZADE BARBARA J 3247 $449.97 $282.12
ZADE BARBARA J 3277 $7,139.17 *
ZELNY VICTOR J-TRUSTEE ZELNY 333 $5,518.89 *
Totals 489,743.59$  $94,057.70 $60,500.63



DELINQUENT TAX BALANCES AS OF JUNE 30,2024
(* INDICATES PAYMENT AFTER THAT DATE AND PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024)

NAME ACCT 23/24 22/23 PRIOR
BUSINESS

302 NUTRITION 268 $92.22
BEA'S BLOOMS 279 $93.81
EAST SHORE TAVERN 182 $298.92 *
ENGINE WORKS 55 $147.07
LAKE REGION DESIGN & FAB 280 $38.16
MAGGIES A FINE HAIR SALON 223 $30.21
RAYMOND REDICARE 238 $105.67
RAYMOND SERVICE CENTER 94 $57.24
RP FLYNN & SON INC 62 $271.89

INDIAN POINT
BEAR PROPETIES 90 $55.65 *
CARROLL JAMES E 25 $58.83 $61.50 $60.63
RISBARA MICHAEL 140 $50.88
STILES KEITH 156 $162.18

KOKATOSKI
COLARUSSO WILIAM & KELLY 30 $68.37 $75.00 $524.11
CRONIN 258 $104.94
DENSMORE 237 $338.67
DUNN EDWARD & ABBY 174 $74.73
JOY DEANNA 259 $81.09
LOMBARD MATTHEW 177 $146.28
LUXTON SCOTT & STATIE 114 $89.04
MATHEWS SYNDI & ANDY 82 $222.60
POULIN MIKE & MELISSA 89 $106.53 $117.00 $362.18
SCARBOROUGH BEN 144 $76.32
THOITS TAMMY & RANDY 157 $238.50
Totals $3,009.80 $253.50 $946.92

PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
Selectboard 
Town of Raymond 
Raymond, Maine 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
 We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town 
of Raymond, Maine as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024 and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Raymond, Maine’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the Town of Raymond, Maine as of June 30, 2024 and the respective changes in financial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Basis for Opinions 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We 
are required to be independent of the Town of Raymond, Maine and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether 
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt 
about the Town of Raymond, Maine’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve 
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that 
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of 
internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing 

Standards, we: 
 

 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. 
 

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include examining, on 
a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

 
 obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of 
Raymond, Maine’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
 conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered 

in the aggregate, that raise doubt about the Town of Raymond, Maine’s ability 
to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings 
and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
that the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison and pension 
information on pages 5 through 12 and 55 through 56 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the Town of Raymond, Maine’s basic financial 
statements.  The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual 
- General Fund Revenues, Schedule of Departmental Operations - General Fund and 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - General Fund 
Revenues, Schedule of Departmental Operations - General Fund and combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our 
report dated April 29, 2025, on our consideration of the Town of Raymond, Maine’s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants agreements and other matters.  The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Raymond, Maine’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Raymond, 
Maine’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 

 
Buxton, Maine 
April 29, 2025 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2024 
 

(UNAUDITED) 
 
 The following management’s discussion and analysis of Town of Raymond, 
Maine's financial performance provides an overview of the Town's financial activities for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.  Please read it in conjunction with the Town's 
financial statements. 
 

Financial Statement Overview 
 
 The Town of Raymond’s basic financial statements include the following 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 
3) notes to the financial statements.  This report also includes required supplementary 
information which consists of the general fund budgetary comparison schedules and other 
supplementary information which includes combining and other schedules.  
 

Basic Financial Statements 
 
 The basic financial statements include financial information in two differing views: 
the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. These basic 
financial statements also include the notes to financial statements that explain in more 
detail certain information in the financial statements and also provide the user with the 
accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements. 
 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
 The government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the Town’s 
operations in a manner that is similar to private businesses.  These statements provide 
both short-term as well as long-term information in regard to the Town’s financial position.  
These financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. This 
measurement focus takes into account all revenues and expenses associated with the 
fiscal year regardless of when cash is received or paid. The government-wide financial 
statements include the following two statements: 
 

The Statement of Net Position - this statement presents all of the government’s 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
with the difference being reported as net position.   

 
The Statement of Activities - this statement presents information that shows how 
the government’s net position changed during the period.  All changes in net 
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  
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Both of the above-mentioned financial statements have separate columns for the 
two different types of Town activities.  The types of activities presented for the Town of 
Raymond are:  

 
● Governmental activities - The activities in this section are mostly supported 

by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (federal and state grants).  Most 
of the Town's basic services are reported in governmental activities, which 
include general government, public safety, public works, fringe benefits, 
public health and welfare, community services, education and program 
expenses.   

 
 ● Business-type activities - These activities are normally intended to recover 

all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and/or charges to 
external users for goods and/or services. These activities for the Town of 
Raymond include the Tassel Top Park.  

 
Fund Financial Statements 

 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 

resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town of 
Raymond, like other local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with financial related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the Town of 
Raymond can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.   

 
Governmental funds: Most of the basic services provided by the Town are financed 

through governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the 
same functions reported in governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources.  They also focus on the balance of spendable resources available 
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information will be useful in evaluating the government’s 
near-term financing requirements.  This approach is known as the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this 
approach revenues, are recorded when cash is received or when susceptible to accrual.  
Expenditures are recorded when liabilities are incurred and due.  These statements 
provide a detailed short-term view of the Town’s finances to assist in determining whether 
there will be adequate financial resources available to meet the current needs of the 
Town.  
 
 Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the 
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the 
governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
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comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.  These 
reconciliations are presented on the page immediately following each governmental funds 
financial statement.  

 
 The Town of Raymond presents three columns in the governmental funds balance 
sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in 
fund balances.  The Town’s major governmental funds are the general fund and the bond 
fund.  All other funds are shown as nonmajor and are combined in the “Other 
Governmental Funds” column on these statements.    
 
 The general fund is the only fund for which the Town legally adopted a budget.  
The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - General 
Fund provide comparisons of the original and final budget and the actual expenditures for 
the current year.   
 

Proprietary Funds: The Town of Raymond maintains one proprietary fund, the 
Tassel Top Park.  This fund is used to show activities that operate more like those of 
commercial enterprises.  Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the 
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.  Like the government-wide 
financial statements, proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of 
accounting.  No reconciliation is needed between the government-wide financial 
statements for business-type activities and the proprietary fund financial statements.   
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the Government-Wide and the Fund Financial Statements.  The 
Notes to Financial Statements can be found following the Statement of Cash Flows - 
Proprietary Funds.  

 
Required Supplementary Information 

 
 The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary 
information, which includes a Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - 
Budget and Actual - General Fund and Schedule of Contributions - Pension. 

 
Other Supplementary Information 

 
 Other supplementary information follows the required supplementary information.  
These combining and other schedules provide information in regard to nonmajor funds 
and other detailed budgetary information for the general fund.  
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 

Our analysis below focuses on the net position and changes in net position of the 
Town's governmental activities.  The Town's total net position for governmental activities 
increased by $1,332,399 from $10,717,861 to $12,050,260.  For the business-type 
activities, total net position increased by $127,542 from $52,920 to $180,462. 
 

Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance day-
to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation 
or other legal requirements - increased to a balance of $4,262,212 at the end of this year 
for governmental activities and increased to a balance of $27,580 for the business-type 
activities.  

 

2023
2024 (Restated) 2024 2023

Assets:
Current Assets 7,555,747$     5,644,079$    28,527$         22,994$         
Noncurrent Assets - Capital Assets 7,043,360       6,915,119      152,882         31,967           
Total Assets 14,599,107     12,559,198    181,409         54,961           

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 88,168             -                      -                      -                      
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 88,168             -                      -                      -                      

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities 792,144          606,440         947                 2,041              
Noncurrent Liabilities 1,445,639       852,940         -                      -                      
Total Liabilities 2,237,783       1,459,380      947                 2,041              

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Revenue 344,090          325,696         -                      -                      
Prepaid Taxes 55,142             56,261           -                      -                      
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 399,232          381,957         -                      -                      

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,217,935       5,912,868      152,882         31,967           
Restricted 2,570,113       1,118,126      -                      -                      
Unrestricted 4,262,212       3,686,867      27,580           20,953           
Total Net Position 12,050,260$   10,717,861$ 180,462$       52,920$         

Business-type Activities

Table 1
Town of Raymond, Maine

Net Position
June 30,

Governmental Activities
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Revenues and Expenses 
 

 Revenues for the Town's governmental activities increased by 3.78%, while total 
expenses increased by 7.04%.  The increase in revenues was primarily due to taxes.  The 
increase in expenses was primarily due to fringe benefits and education. 
 
 Revenues increased by 2.32% in the Town’s business type activities, while the 
total expenses increased by 0.99%. 
 

2024 2023 2024 2023

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for services 603,731$       609,444$       144,953$       142,352$       
Operating grants and contributions 193,729         98,949           -                      -                      

General Revenues:
Taxes 18,266,347    17,209,469    -                      -                      
Grants and contributions not restricted
   to specific programs 945,689         872,720         -                      -                      
Investment income 239,584         229,009         -                      -                      
Miscellaneous 181,519         666,575         703                 -                      

     Total Revenues 20,430,599    19,686,166    145,656         142,352         

Expenses
General government 1,638,667      1,599,775      -                      -                      
Public safety 1,308,410      1,213,921      -                      -                      
Public works 1,240,569      1,242,423      -                      -                      
Fringe benefits 961,998         710,620         -                      -                      
Public health and welfare 21,060           29,131           -                      -                      
Community services 357,090         393,811         -                      -                      
Education 11,940,729    11,347,307    -                      -                      
County tax 974,325         817,347         -                      -                      
Capital outlay 299,690         198,743         -                      -                      
Program expenses 294,529         270,868         -                      -                      
Unallocated depreciation (Note 5)* 473,244         409,947         -                      -                      
Interest on long-term debt 26,287           17,314           -                      -                      
Tassel Top Park -                      -                      141,913         140,520         

     Total Expenses 19,536,598    18,251,207    141,913         140,520         

Special and extraordinary items 562,197         -                      -                      -                      

Change in Net Position 1,332,399      1,434,959      127,542         1,832              

Net Position - July 1, As Previously Reported 10,717,861    9,575,497      52,920           51,088           

Corrections -                      (292,595)        -                      -                      

Net Position - July 1, As Restated 10,717,861    9,282,902      52,920           51,088           

Net Position - June 30 12,050,260$ 10,717,861$ 180,462$       52,920$         

Table 2
Town of Raymond, Maine

Change in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Town’s Fund Statements 
 

Governmental funds: The financial reporting focus of the Town’s governmental 
funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable 
resources.  Such information may be useful in assessing the Town’s financial 
requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of 
a government’s financial position at the end of the year and the net resources available 
for spending.  
 

2023 Increase/
2024 (Restated) (Decrease)

Major Funds:
General Fund:

Nonspendable 260,255$       196,963$       63,292$         
Assigned 304,695         379,695         (75,000)          
Unassigned 2,589,284      2,159,008      430,276         

Bond Fund:
Restricted 995,694         -                       995,694         

Total Major Funds 4,149,928$    2,735,666$    1,414,262$    

Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:

Nonspendable 9,531$            8,126$            1,405$            
Restricted 1,040,816      922,060         118,756         
Unassigned (deficit) (2,268)             (2,268)             -                       

Capital Projects Funds:
Committed 943,475         674,909         268,566         

Permanent Funds:
Nonspendable 224,786         224,786         -                       
Restricted 308,817         237,323         71,494            

Total Nonmajor Funds 2,533,350$    2,064,936$    468,414$       

Table 3
Town of Raymond, Maine

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
June 30,

 
The changes to total fund balances for the general fund and aggregate nonmajor 

funds occurred due to the regular activity of operations.  The bond fund activity occurred 
due to debt issuance and the use of bond proceeds.  
 

Proprietary funds: The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.  

 
The Tassel Top Park had an increase in net position of $127,542 primarily due to 

governmental activity contributions toward capital asset additions.  



 

11 

Budgetary Highlights 
 

The difference between the original and final budget for the general fund was due 
to use of assigned fund balance. 

 
The general fund actual revenues exceeded budgeted amounts by $296,045.  This 

was due to all revenue categories being receipted within or in excess of budgeted 
amounts with the exception of other revenue   

 
The general fund actual expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts by $167,477.  

All expenditure categories exceeded or were within budgeted amounts with the exception 
of public works, community services, debt service - interest and overlay. 
 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 

Capital Assets 
 

 As of June 30, 2024, the net book value of capital assets recorded by the Town 
increased by $249,156.  This increase is a result of capital additions of $725,284 less 
current year depreciation expense of $476,128.  Refer to Note 5 of Notes to Financial 
Statements for additional information. 
 

2024 2023

Land 326,423$        326,423$        
Construction in progress 1,109,042       748,547           
Buildings and improvements 1,975,498       1,977,571       
Machinery, equipment and

vehicles 2,201,971       2,229,400       
Infrastructure 1,583,308       1,665,145       
Total 7,196,242$     6,947,086$     

Table 4
Town of Raymond, Maine

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
June 30,

` 
Debt 

 
 At June 30, 2024, the Town had $1,825,425 in bonds and note from direct 
borrowings payable versus $1,002,251 last year.  Refer to Note 6 of Notes to Financial 
Statements for more detailed information. 
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Currently Known Facts, Decisions or Conditions 
 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 
 
 The Town is working toward maintaining a sufficient unassigned fund balance to 
sustain government operations for a period of approximately two months. The Town 
maintains significant reserve accounts. 

 
Contacting the Town's Financial Management 

 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers 

and investors and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show 
the Town's accountability for the money it receives.  If you have questions about this 
report or need additional financial information, contact the Town Finance Department at 
401 Webbs Mills Road, Raymond, Maine 04071. 
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 6,022,262$      600$                 6,022,862$      
Investments 639,044           -                       639,044          
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles):

Taxes 507,563           -                       507,563          
Other 55,167             -                       55,167            

Due from other governments 89,852             -                       89,852            
Prepaid items 134,238           -                       134,238          
Tax acquired property 135,548           -                       135,548          
Internal balances (27,927)            27,927              -                     

Total current assets 7,555,747        28,527              7,584,274        

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land and other assets not being depreciated 1,326,883        108,582            1,435,465        
Buildings and vehicles net of accumulated depreciation 5,716,477        44,300              5,760,777        

Total noncurrent assets 7,043,360        152,882            7,196,242        

TOTAL ASSETS 14,599,107      181,409            14,780,516      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 88,168             -                       88,168            

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 88,168             -                       88,168            

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 14,687,275$     181,409$           14,868,684$    

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 119,060$         947$                 120,007$         
Accrued expenses 4,423              -                       4,423              
Current portion of long-term obligations 566,888           -                       566,888          

Total current liabilities 792,144           947                   793,091          

Noncurrent liabilities:
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations:

Bonds payable 920,000           -                       920,000          
Note from direct borrowings payable 347,892           -                       347,892          
Accrued compensated absences 177,747           -                       177,747          

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,445,639        -                       1,445,639        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,237,783        947                   2,238,730        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred revenue 344,090           -                       344,090          
Prepaid taxes 55,142             -                       55,142            

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 399,232           -                       399,232          

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,217,935        152,882            5,370,817        
Restricted 2,570,113        -                       2,570,113        
Unrestricted 4,262,212        27,580              4,289,792        

TOTAL NET POSITION 12,050,260      180,462            12,230,722      

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION 14,687,275$     181,409$           14,868,684$    
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Operating Capital Business-
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities:
General government 1,638,667$     246,317$     -$                  -$                  (1,392,350)$     -$             (1,392,350)$    
Public safety 1,308,410       284,447       -                    -                    (1,023,963)       -               (1,023,963)      
Public works 1,240,569       110             61,496           -                    (1,178,963)       -               (1,178,963)      
Fringe benefits 961,998          -                 -                    -                    (961,998)          -               (961,998)         
Public health and welfare 21,060           -                 18,257           -                    (2,803)             -               (2,803)            
Community services 357,090          296             -                    -                    (356,794)          -               (356,794)         
Education 11,940,729     -                 -                    -                    (11,940,729)     -               (11,940,729)    
County tax 974,325          -                 -                    -                    (974,325)          -               (974,325)         
Program expenses 294,529          72,561         113,976         -                    (107,992)          -               (107,992)         
Capital outlay 299,690          -                 -                    -                    (299,690)          -               (299,690)         
Unallocated depreciation (Note 5)* 473,244          -                 -                    -                    (473,244)          -               (473,244)         
Interest on long-term debt 26,287           -                 -                    -                    (26,287)           -               (26,287)          

       Total governmental activities 19,536,598     603,731       193,729         -                    (18,739,138)     -               (18,739,138)    

Business-type activities:
   Tassel top 141,913          144,953       -                    -                    -                     3,040        3,040             
       Total business-type activities 141,913          144,953       -                    -                    -                     3,040        3,040             

       Total government 19,678,511$   748,684$     193,729$        -$                  (18,739,138)     3,040        (18,736,098)    

*This amount excludes the depreciation that is included in the direct expenses of the various programs.

Program Revenues
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes

in Net Position
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Business-
Governmental type

Activities Activities Total

Changes in net position:
  Net (expense) revenue (18,739,138)    3,040              (18,736,098)  

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 16,932,411     -                       16,932,411    
Excise taxes 1,333,936       -                       1,333,936      

Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs 945,689          -                       945,689         

Investment income, net of unrealized gains/(losses) 239,584          -                       239,584         
Miscellaneous 181,519          703                 182,222         
Transfers (123,799)         123,799         -                      

Total general revenues 19,509,340     124,502         19,633,842    

Special and extraordinary items 562,197          -                       562,197         

Change in net position 1,332,399       127,542         1,459,941      

NET POSITION - JULY 1, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 11,010,456     52,920            11,063,376    

NET POSITION CORRECTIONS (292,595)         -                       (292,595)        

NET POSITION - JULY 1, AS RESTATED 10,717,861     52,920            10,770,781    

NET POSITION - JUNE 30 12,050,260$   180,462$       12,230,722$ 
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Other Total
General Bond Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5,815,895$    -$                    206,367$       6,022,262$    
Investments 100,056         -                       538,988         639,044         
Accounts receivables (net of allowance for 

uncollectibles):
Taxes/liens 507,563         -                       -                       507,563         
Other 52,035            -                       3,132              55,167            

Due from other governments 89,852            -                       -                       89,852            
Prepaid items 124,707         -                       9,531              134,238         
Tax acquired property 135,548         -                       -                       135,548         
Due from other funds 27,208            995,694         2,102,760      3,125,662      

TOTAL ASSETS 6,852,864$    995,694$       2,860,778$    10,709,336$  

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 112,234$       -$                    6,826$            119,060$       
Accrued payroll 59,860            -                       -                       59,860            
Accrued expenses 4,423              -                       -                       4,423              
Due to other governments 10,803            -                       -                       10,803            
Escrows 31,110            -                       -                       31,110            
Due to other funds 3,126,381      -                       27,208            3,153,589      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,344,811      -                       34,034            3,378,845      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred revenues 50,696            -                       293,394         344,090         
Prepaid taxes 55,142            -                       -                       55,142            
Deferred tax revenues 247,981         -                       -                       247,981         

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 353,819         -                       293,394         647,213         

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 260,255         -                       234,317         494,572         
Restricted -                       995,694         1,349,633      2,345,327      
Committed -                       -                       943,475         943,475         
Assigned 304,695         -                       8,193              312,888         
Unassigned 2,589,284      -                       (2,268)             2,587,016      

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3,154,234      995,694         2,533,350      6,683,278      

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 6,852,864$    995,694$       2,860,778$    10,709,336$  
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Total
Governmental

Funds

Total Fund Balances 6,683,278$    
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are 

different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation 7,043,360      
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures

and therefore are deferred in the funds shown above:
Taxes and liens receivable 247,981         

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not financial resources 
and therefore are not reported in the funds 88,168           

Long-term obligations are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds:
Bonds payable (1,435,000)     
Note from direct borrowings payable (390,425)        
Accrued compensated absences (187,102)        

Net position of governmental activities 12,050,260$ 
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Other Total
General Bond Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES

General tax revenue 18,218,970$  -$                    -$                    18,218,970$  
Intergovernmental revenue 1,025,442      -                       113,976         1,139,418      
Charges for services 531,170         -                       72,561            603,731         
Investment income, net of unrealized gains/(losses) 153,397         -                       86,187            239,584         
Other revenue 79,411            -                       102,108         181,519         

TOTAL REVENUES 20,008,390    -                       374,832         20,383,222    

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 1,647,778      -                       -                       1,647,778      
Public safety 1,396,578      -                       -                       1,396,578      
Public works 1,240,569      -                       -                       1,240,569      
Fringe benefits 961,998         -                       -                       961,998         
Public health and welfare 21,060            -                       -                       21,060            
Community services 357,090         -                       -                       357,090         
Education 11,940,729    -                       -                       11,940,729    
County tax 974,325         -                       -                       974,325         
Program expenses -                       -                       294,529         294,529         

Debt service:
Principal 315,213         -                       11,613            326,826         
Interest 26,287            -                       -                       26,287            

Capital outlay -                       148,000         753,175         901,175         
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,881,627    148,000         1,059,317      20,088,944    

(154,939)        
EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 

EXPENDITURES 1,126,763      (148,000)        (684,485)        294,278         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Bond proceeds -                       1,150,000      -                       1,150,000      
Transfers in 34,000            -                       1,282,195      1,316,195      
Transfers (out) (1,282,195)     (28,503)          (129,296)        (1,439,994)     

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,248,195)     1,121,497      1,152,899      1,026,201      

SPECIAL AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Premium on bond issuance -                       29,731            -                       29,731            
Bond issuance costs -                       (7,534)             -                       (7,534)             
Legal settlement 540,000         -                       -                       540,000         

TOTAL SPECIAL AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 540,000         22,197            -                       562,197         

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 418,568         995,694         468,414         1,882,676      

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, AS PREVIOUSLY
REPORTED 3,001,709      -                       2,091,488      5,093,197      

FUND BALANCE CORRECTIONS (266,043)        -                       (26,552)          (292,595)        

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, AS RESTATED 2,735,666      -                       2,064,936      4,800,602      

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 3,154,234$    995,694$       2,533,350$    6,683,278$    
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Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Statement E) 1,882,676$   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
(Statement B) are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense allocated to those expenditures over the life 
of the assets:
Capital asset acquisitions 601,485         
Depreciation expense (473,244)        

128,241         

Deferred outflows of resources are a consumption of net position by the government
that are applicable to a future reporting period and therefore are not reported in the
funds:
Pension 88,168           

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported:
Taxes and liens receivable 47,377           

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
  issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position (1,150,000)    

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term obligations in the Statement of Net Position 326,826         

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:
Accrued compensated absences 9,111             

Change in net position of governmental activities (Statement B) 1,332,399$   
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Enterprise Fund
Tassel

Top Park
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 600$                 
Due from other funds 27,927             

Total current assets 28,527             

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Construction in progress 108,582           
Buildings and improvements 40,017             
Infrastructure 16,438             

Total capital assets 165,037           
Less: accumulated depreciation (12,155)            

Total noncurrent assets 152,882           

TOTAL ASSETS 181,409$         

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 947$                 
Total current liabilities 947                   

TOTAL LIABILITIES 947                   

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 152,882           
Unrestricted 27,580             

TOTAL NET POSITION 180,462           

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 181,409$         
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Enterprise Fund
Tassel

Top Park
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 144,953$          
Other 703                    

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 145,656            

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 89,704              
Contracted services 17,842              
Utilities 4,581                 
Repairs, maintenance and equipment 13,259              
Supplies and office 13,643              
Depreciation 2,884                 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 141,913            

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 3,743                 

TRANSFERS
Transfers in 123,799            

TOTAL TRANSFERS 123,799            

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 127,542            

NET POSITION - JULY 1 52,920              

NET POSITION - JUNE 30 180,462$          
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Enterprise Fund
Tassel

Top Park
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 144,953$         
Other receipts 703                   
Internal activity - receipts (payments) from/to other funds (6,197)              
Payments to employees (89,704)            
Payments to suppliers (50,419)            

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (664)                  

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased (123,799)          
Transfers in/(out) 123,799           

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES -                        

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (664)                  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1 1,264                

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30 600$                 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) 3,743$             
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used)

by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,884                

Changes in operating assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources:
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (6,197)              
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (1,094)              

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (664)$               
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Reporting Entity 
 

The Town of Raymond was incorporated under the laws of the State of Maine.  
The Town operates under Selectboard-manager form of government and provides the 
following services: general government, public safety, public works, fringe benefits, public 
health and welfare, community services, education and program expenses. 
 
 The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its 
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).  Governments are also required to 
follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued 
through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements.  Although the Town has the option to apply FASB pronouncements 
issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the Town has 
chosen not to do so.   
 

The Town’s combined financial statements include all accounts and all operations 
of the Town.  We have determined that the Town has no component units as described 
in GASB Statement No. 14 and amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and No. 61. 
 

Implementation of New Accounting Standards 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2024, the following statement of financial 

accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board became 
effective:  
 

Statement No. 100 “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an Amendment 
of GASB Statement No. 62”.  The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance 
accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error 
corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent and 
comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. Management 
has determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the financial statements. 
 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
 The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting 
the Town as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds).  
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary 
activities as either governmental or business-type.  The Town’s Tassel Top Park fund is 
categorized as a business-type activity.  All other activities of the Town are categorized 
as governmental. 

 
 In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and 
business-type activities columns are (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column 
and (b) reported on a full accrual, economic resources basis, which recognizes all long-
term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations.  The Town’s net 
position is reported in three parts - net investment in capital assets, restricted net position 
and unrestricted net position.  The Town first utilizes restricted resources to finance 
qualifying activities. 
 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost 
of each of the Town's functions and business-type activities (general government, public 
safety, etc.) excluding fiduciary activities.  The functions are also supported by general 
government revenues (property taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, 
miscellaneous revenues, etc.).  The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses 
(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants.  
Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type 
activity.  Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating 
or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. For the 
most part, the interfund activity has been eliminated from these government-wide financial 
statements. 
  

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (taxes, certain 
intergovernmental revenues and charges for services, etc.). 
 
 The Town does not allocate indirect costs.  All costs are charged directly to the 
corresponding department. 
 
 The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity 
and the change in the Town’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities. 
 
Measurement Focus - Basic Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements 
 
 The financial transactions of the Town are reported in the individual funds in the 
fund financial statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, fund balances, revenues and expenditures/expenses.  The 
various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.  The 
following fund types are used by the Town: 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
1. Governmental Funds: 
 
 The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is 
upon determination of financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial 
resources) rather than upon net income.  The following is a description of the 
governmental funds of the Town: 
 

Major Funds 
 
a. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town.  It is used to 

account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted 
for in another fund. 
 

b. The Bond Fund is used to account for bond proceeds that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 
 

Nonmajor Funds 
 
c. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 

revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified 
purposes. 

 
d. Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be 

used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, 
infrastructure and/or equipment. 

 
 e. Permanent Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town that are 

legally restricted pursuant to Title 30-A, §5653 of the Maine State Statutes, 
as amended and unless otherwise specified, only earnings and not 
principal, may be used for purposes that benefit the Town or its citizenry.  
The Town’s policy for authorizing and spending investment income follows 
State statutes. 

 
2. Proprietary Funds: 
 
 The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating 
income, changes in net position, financial position and cash flows.  The generally 
accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private 
sector.  Operating revenues include charges for services, intergovernmental 
reimbursements and other miscellaneous fees which are a direct result of the proprietary 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
activity.  Nonoperating revenues are any revenues which are generated outside of the 
general proprietary activity, i.e. interest income.  The following is a description of the 
proprietary funds of the Town: 
 

a. Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which 
a fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) 
is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of net revenues, (b) 
has third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including 
capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) established fees 
and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs. 

 
The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the 

governmental or business-type activities categories.  Nonmajor funds by category are 
summarized into a single column, GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria 
(percentage of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, revenues or expenses of either the fund category or the governmental and 
enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.  The nonmajor funds are 
combined in a column in the fund financial statements. 
 

Basis of Accounting 
 
 Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting 
relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus 
applied. 
 
1. Accrual 
 
 Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and fiduciary 
fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues 
are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 
2. Modified Accrual 
 
 The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available.  "Available" 
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period.  Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred.  The exception to this 
general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is 
recognized when due. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Budget 
 
 The Town’s policy is to adopt an annual budget for operations.  The budget is 
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
 
 The following procedures are followed in establishing budgetary data reflected in 
the financial statements: 
 
1. Early in the second half of the year the Town prepares a budget for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 

 
2. A meeting of the Selectboard was called for the purpose of adopting the proposed 

budget after public notice of the meeting was given. 
 
3. The budget was adopted Secret Ballot Referendum. 
 

Deposits and Investments 
 
 The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, 
demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or 
less from the date of acquisition. 
 
 It is the Town’s policy to value investments at fair value.  None of the Town’s 
investments are reported at amortized cost.  For purposes of the statement of cash flows, 
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are 
considered to be a cash equivalent.  The Town Treasurer is authorized by State Statutes 
to invest all excess funds in the following: 
  

- Obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities 
- Certificates of deposit and other evidence of deposits at banks, savings and 

loan associations 
- Repurchase agreements whose underlying collateral consist of the foregoing 
- Money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist of the foregoing 

 
It is the policy of the Town of Raymond, Maine to invest public funds in a manner 

in which will provide safety of principal with a market rate of return while meeting the daily 
cash flow demands of the Town and conforming to all state and local statutes governing 
the investment of public funds. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Receivables 
 
Receivables include amounts due from governmental agencies.  All receivables 

are current and therefore due within one year.  Receivables are reported net of an 
allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues net of uncollectibles.  Allowances are 
reported when accounts are proven to be uncollectible.  The allowance for uncollectible 
accounts is estimated to be $40,000 as of June 30, 2024.  Accounts receivable netted 
with allowances for uncollectibles were $145,019 for the year ended June 30, 2024.  
 

Prepaid items 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 

and are recorded as prepaid items. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as 
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. 
 

Tax Acquired Property 
 

Real property becomes tax acquired when tax liens placed on property and 
associated costs remain unpaid eighteen months after the filing of the tax lien in 
accordance with 36 M.R.S.A. § 943.  The amount of the taxes and associated costs 
become assets classified as tax acquired property receivables that are secured by the 
real property that foreclosed. 
 

After real property becomes tax acquired the Selectboard is responsible for the 
property and any disposition procedures allowed under the direction of the inhabitants of 
the Town as authorized by the provisions of the Town Policy. 
 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 
 

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from 
other funds”. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain 
eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. 
Any residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and business-type 
activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial statements as “internal 
balances”.   
 

Transactions Between Funds 
 

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in 
the results of operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are 

reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost.  Additions, improvements and other 
capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized.  
Infrastructure such as streets, traffic signals and signs are capitalized.  Other costs 
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.  Depreciation on all 
assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. 
 

The assets are valued at historical cost when available and estimated historical 
cost where actual invoices or budgetary data was unavailable.  Donated capital assets 
are reported at their estimated fair market value on the date received.  All retirements 
have been recorded by eliminating the net carrying values. 
 

Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related 
to independently owned utilities), traffic signals, etc.  These infrastructure assets are likely 
to be the largest asset class of the Town.  The Town has not retroactively recorded 
infrastructure.  
 

Estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
  Buildings and land improvements  20 - 50 years 
  Infrastructure     50 - 100 years 
  Machinery and equipment   3 - 50 years 
  Vehicles     3 - 25 years 
 

Long-term Obligations 
 
The accounting treatment of long-term obligations depend on whether the assets 

are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether 
they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

 
All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type 

resources are reported as liabilities in government-wide statements.  The long-term 
obligations consist of bonds payable, a note from direct borrowings payable and accrued 
compensated absences. 
 

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund 
financial statements.  The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and 
payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures.  The accounting for 
proprietary funds is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide 
statements. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Pension 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information 
about the fiduciary net position of the Participating Local District (PLD) Plan and additions 
to/deductions from the PLD Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by the PLD Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
Net Position 

 
Net position represents the difference between all other elements in a statement 

of financial position.  Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used 
for those assets and adding back unspent proceeds.  Net position is reported as restricted 
when there are limitations imposed on its use either through enabling legislations adopted 
by the Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or 
regulations of other governments.  Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources that 
are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or restricted net 
position. 
 

Fund Balance 
 

 In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported 
in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the 
Town is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the 
funds can be spent.  Fund balance is reported in five components - nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. 
 

Nonspendable - This includes amounts that cannot be spent either because they 
are not in spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 
 

Restricted - This includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes 
because of constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that 
are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or the laws or regulations of 
other governments. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Committed - This includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
determined by a formal action of the inhabitants of the Town or the Selectboard in 
accordance with its charter. The inhabitants of the Town, through Town meetings, are the 
highest level of decision-making authority of the Town. Commitments may be modified or 
rescinded in the same manner they were established. 
 

Assigned - This includes amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as 
restricted or committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes.  The 
authority for assigning fund balance is given by the taxpayers and is expressed by the 
Selectboard. 

 
Unassigned - This includes all other spendable amounts.  The general fund is the 

only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.  Other governmental 
funds besides the general fund can only report a negative unassigned fund balance 
amount. 
 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted fund balances are available, the Town considers restricted funds to have 
been spent first.  When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned or 
unassigned fund balances are available, the Town considers amounts to have been spent 
first out of committed funds, then assigned funds and finally unassigned funds, as 
needed, unless the Town meeting vote has provided otherwise in its commitment or 
assignment actions. 
 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will 

at times report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate 
financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of 
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow 
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  For this item, the Town has deferred 
outflows related to pensions that qualify for reporting in this category. This item is reported 
in the statement of net position. 
 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will 
at times report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate 
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of 
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time.  Deferred tax revenues, which arises only under a 
modified accrual basis of accounting qualifies for reporting in this category.  Accordingly, 
this item is reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.  Prepaid taxes and deferred 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
revenue also qualify for reporting in this category. These items are reported in both the 
statements of net position and governmental funds balance sheet. All items in this 
category are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the 
amounts become available. 
 

Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes - Modified Accrual Basis 
 
 The Town's property tax for the current year was levied September 13, 2023 on 
the assessed value listed as of April 1, 2023, for all real and personal property located in 
the Town.  Taxes were due on October 31, 2023 and April 30, 2024.  Interest on unpaid 
taxes commenced on November 1, 2023 and May 1, 2024, at 8% per annum. 

 
Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available.  Available 

includes those property tax receivables expected to be collected within sixty days after 
year end.  The remaining receivables have been recorded as deferred revenues. 
 
 The Town is permitted by the laws of the State of Maine to levy taxes up to 105% 
of its net budgeted expenditures for the related fiscal period.  The amount raised in excess 
of 100% is referred to as overlay and amounted to $48,099 for the year ended June 30, 
2024. 
 

Tax liens are placed on real property within twelve months following the tax 
commitment date if taxes are delinquent.  The Town has the authority to foreclose on 
property eighteen months after the filing of the lien if tax liens and associated costs remain 
unpaid. 
 

Program Revenues 
 
Program revenues include all directly related income items applicable to a 

particular program (charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or privileges 
provided, operating or capital grants and contributions, including special assessments). 
 

Operating/Nonoperating Proprietary Fund Revenues 
 
Operating revenues consist mainly of direct revenue sources and/or charges for 

services applicable to that fund’s ongoing operations. All revenue and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Encumbrance Accounting 
 
 Encumbrances are not liabilities and, therefore, are not recorded as expenditures 
until receipt of material or service.  For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at fiscal 
year-end.  The Town does not utilize encumbrance accounting for its general fund.   
 

Use of Estimates 
 
During the preparation of the Town’s financial statements, management is required 

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent items as of the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 
NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

The Town’s investment policies, which follow state statutes, require that all 
investments be made considering the safe and sound investment of principal and 
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio, maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet 
day-to-day operations and other cash requirements and maximization of income, within 
established investment risk guidelines, with consistent cash flows throughout the 
budgetary cycle.  These investment policies apply to all Town funds under the Treasurer’s 
control. 
 
 Deposits: 
 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a failure of a 
depository financial institution, the Town will not be able to recover its deposits.  The Town 
does not have a policy covering custodial credit risk for deposits.  However, the Town 
maintains deposits in qualifying financial institutions that are a member of the FDIC or 
NCUSIF as defined in Title 30-A, Section 5706 of the Maine Revised Statutes.   
 

At June 30, 2024, the Town’s cash and cash equivalents balance of $6,022,862 
was comprised of bank deposits and cash equivalents amounting to $6,254,007.  Bank 
deposits and cash equivalents are adjusted primarily by outstanding checks and deposits 
in transit to reconcile to the Town’s cash and cash equivalents balance.  The bank 
deposits of $6,186,491 were fully insured by federal depository insurance (FDIC) and 
consequently were not exposed to custodial credit risk and cash and cash equivalents of 
$2,516 were uninsured and uncollateralized.   
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

Bank 
Account Type Balance

Checking accounts 65,000$         
IntraFi/ICS account 6,186,483      
Cash and cash equivalents 2,524              

6,254,007$    
 

Investments: 
 
Custodial credit risk for investments is that, in the event of failure of the 

counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in possession of an outside party.  Currently, the Town does not have 
a policy for custodial credit risk for investments.  However, in accordance with its 
investment policy, the Town seeks to minimize custodial credit risk by doing business with 
authorized institutions, depositories and broker/dealers.  Of the Town’s investments, 
$100,056 were covered by the federal depository insurance (FDIC) consequently were 
not exposed to custodial credit risk.  The remaining investments of $538,988 were 
uninsured and uncollateralized. 

 
Interest rate risk - is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the 

fair value of an investment.  The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising 
from fluctuations in interest rates.  
 

At June 30, 2024, the Town had the following investments and maturities: 
 

Fair 
Investment Type Value N/A < 1 Year 1 - 5 Years >5 Years

Debt securities:
U.S. Agency Securities 119,926$    -$                 -$                 24,934$      94,992$      
Mutual funds 38,022         38,022         -                    -                    -                    
Brokered Certificates of deposit 100,056      -                    100,056      -                    -                    

Equity securities:
Mutual funds 1,025           1,025           -                    -                    -                    
Exchange traded funds 380,015      380,015      -                    -                    -                    

639,044$    419,062$    100,056$    24,934$      94,992$      
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
 

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The Town has the following 
recurring fair value measurements as June 30, 2024: 

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
June 30, 2024 Assets Inputs Inputs

Total (Level I) (Level II) (Level III)
Investments by fair value level
Debt securities:

U.S. Agency Securities 119,926$      -$                       119,926$     -$                  
Mutual funds 38,022          -                          38,022         -                    
Brokered Certificates of deposit 100,056        -                          100,056       -                    

Total debt securities 258,004        -                          258,004       -                    

Equity securities:
Mutual funds 1,025             1,025                 -                    -                    
Exchange traded funds 380,015        380,015            -                    -                    

Total equity securities 381,040        381,040            -                    -                    

Total investments by fair value level 639,044        381,040$          258,004$     -$                  

Cash equivalents measured at the net asset value (NAV)
Money market mutual funds 2,516             

Total cash equivalents measured at the NAV 2,516             
Total investments and cash equivalents measured

at fair value 641,560$      

Fair Value Measurements Using

 
 Equity securities classified in Level I of the fair value hierarchy are valued using 
prices quoted in active markets for those securities.  Debt securities classified in Level II 
of the fair value hierarchy are valued from publicly reliable sources or using a matrix 
pricing technique.  Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities' 
relationship to benchmark quoted prices.  The Town has no Level III investments.  The 
fair value of money market mutual funds that are measured at NAV per share (or its 
equivalent) is calculated as of June 30, 2024 in a manner consistent with the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board's measurement principles for investment companies.   

 
Credit risk - Statutes for the State of Maine authorize the Town to invest in 

obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities, other states and 
Canada, provided such securities are rated within the three highest grades by an 
approved rating service of the State of Maine, corporate stocks and bonds within statutory 
limits, financial institutions, mutual funds and repurchase agreements.  The Town does 
not have an investment policy on credit risk.  Generally, the Town invests excess funds 
in repurchase agreements and various insured certificates of deposit.  
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NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 
 
 Interfund balances at June 30, 2024 consisted of the following individual fund 
receivables and payables: 
 

Receivables Payables
(Due from) (Due to)

General fund 27,208$         3,126,381$    
Bond fund 995,694         -                       
Nonmajor special revenue funds 1,162,417      19,308            
Nonmajor capital projects funds 940,343         -                       
Nonmajor permanent funds -                       7,900              
Proprietary funds 27,927            -                       

3,153,589$    3,153,589$    
 

The result of amounts owed between funds are considered to be in the course of 
normal operations by the Town.  Reconciliation of the amounts owed between funds may 
or may not be expected to be repaid within one year in their entirety due to the recurring 
nature of these transactions during operations. 
 
NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the Town had the following interfund transfers: 

Transfers Transfers
In Out

General fund 34,000$         1,282,195$    
Capital projects funds -                       28,503            
Nonmajor special revenue funds 352,195         125,296         
Nonmajor capital projects funds 930,000         -                       
Nonmajor permanent funds -                       4,000              
Proprietary funds 123,799         -                       

1,439,994$    1,439,994$    

 
Interfund transfers are the results of legally authorized activity and are considered 

to be in the course of normal operations.    
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS  
 

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 
30, 2024: 

Balance, Balance,
7/1/23 Additions Disposals 6/30/24

Governmental activities
Non-depreciated assets:

Land 326,423$        -$                    -$                     326,423$        
Construction in progress 748,547          251,913         -                        1,000,460       

1,074,970       251,913         -                        1,326,883       
Depreciated assets:

Buildings and improvements 3,855,591       86,749           -                        3,942,340       
Machinery, equipment and 

vehicles 4,803,414       262,823         -                        5,066,237       
Infrastructure 2,411,601       -                      -                        2,411,601       

11,070,606     349,572         -                        11,420,178     
Less: accumulated depreciation (5,230,457)      (473,244)       -                        (5,703,701)      

5,840,149       (123,672)       -                        5,716,477       
Net capital assets 6,915,119$     128,241$      -$                     7,043,360$     

Business-type activities
Non-depreciated assets:

Construction in progress -$                     108,582$      -$                     108,582$        
-                       108,582         -                        108,582          

Depreciated assets:
Buildings and improvements 24,800$          15,217$         -$                     40,017$          
Infrastructure 16,438            -                      -                        16,438            

41,238            15,217           -                        56,455            
Less: accumulated depreciation (9,271)             (2,884)            -                        (12,155)           

31,967            12,333           -                        44,300            
Net capital assets 31,967$          120,915$      -$                     152,882$        

Current year depreciation expense:
Town-wide 473,244          

Subtotal governmental actvities 473,244          

Tassel Top Park 2,884               
Subtotal business-type activities 2,884               

Total depreciation expense 476,128$        
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

 
The following is a summary of changes in the long-term debt for the year ended 

June 30, 2024: 

Balance, Balance, Current
7/1/23 Additions Deletions 6/30/24 Portion

Governmental activities:
Bonds payable 570,000$        1,150,000$    (285,000)$     1,435,000$     515,000$     
Note from direct borrowings
  payable 432,251          -                      (41,826)         390,425          42,533         
Total governmental activities 1,002,251$     1,150,000$    (326,826)$     1,825,425$     557,533$     

 
 The following is a summary of the outstanding bonds and note from direct 
borrowings payable: 
 

Governmental
Activities

Bonds:

2013 General Obligation Bond due in semi-annual principal
installments of $200,000. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of
2.0% to 2.5%  per annum. Maturity in November of 2024. 200,000$     

2015 General Obligation Bond due in semi-annual principal
installments of $85,000. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of
2.0% to 2.5% per annum. Maturity in November of 2024. 85,000          

2024 General Obligation Bond due in semi-annual principal
installments of $230,000. Interest is charged at a fixed rate
ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% per annum. Maturity in November of
2028. 1,150,000    

 Total bonds payable 1,435,000$  

Note from direct borrowings payable:

$489,250 Lease purchase agreement for a Rescue Vehicle.
Annual principal and interest payments of $58,063. Interest is
charged at a fixed rate of 3.97% per annum. Final payment due
August 2031. 390,425$     
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
 The following is a summary of outstanding bond principal and interest 
requirements for the following fiscal years ending June 30: 
 

Total 
Principal Interest Principal Interest Debt Service

2025 515,000$      49,350$         42,533$         15,530$         622,413$       
2026 230,000         36,800           44,213           13,850           324,863         
2027 230,000         27,600           45,968           12,095           315,663         
2028 230,000         17,250           47,793           10,270           305,313         
2029 230,000         5,750             49,668           8,395             293,813         

2030-2034 -                      -                      160,250         13,939           174,189         
1,435,000$   136,750$      390,425$      74,079$         2,036,254$    

Governmental Activities

Bonds Payable Payable
Note from Direct Borrowings

 
All bonds and notes from direct borrowings payable are direct obligations of the 

Town, for which its full faith and credit are pledged.  The Town is not obligated for any 
special assessment debt.  All debt is payable from taxes levied on all taxable property 
within the Town.   
 
NOTE 7 - OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 

The following is a summary of changes in other long-term obligations for the year 
ended June 30, 2024: 

Balance, Balance, Current
7/1/23 Additions Deletions 6/30/24 Portion

Governmental activities:
Accrued compensated
  absences 196,213$        -$                    (9,111)$         187,102$        9,355$         

 
 Refer to Note 8 for more detailed information regarding other long-term obligations. 
 
NOTE 8 - ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 

The Town’s policies regarding vacation and sick time do permit employees to 
accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave.  The liability for these 
compensated absences is recorded as a long-term obligation in the government-wide 
financial statements.  In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only the 
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NOTE 8 - ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES (CONTINUED) 
 
compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial resources, 
while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred.  As of June 30, 2024, the 
Town’s liability for compensated absences is $187,102.  
 
NOTE 9 - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 The following is the calculation of the net investment in capital assets for the Town 
at June 30, 2024: 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Invested in capital assets 12,747,061$  165,037$       
Accumulated depreciation (5,703,701)     (12,155)          
Outstanding capital related debt (1,825,425)     -                       

5,217,935$    152,882$       

 
NOTE 10 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the Town had the following restricted net position: 

Bond fund 995,694$       
Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule E):

Grant unrestricted 73,859            
Library 90,208            
Parks and recreation 10,114            
Community assistance fund 59,044            
Veteran's memorial 4,457              
Beautification committee 3,065              
Panther Pond projects 1,268              
Conservation commissions 1,640              
Economic development 1,240              
Forestry grant 500                 
Revaluation 288,872         
Age Friendly Raymond 1,018              
Community celebration 1,455              
Fire department donations 100                 
Tax increment financing 503,976          
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NOTE 10 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

 
Nonmajor permanent funds (Schedule I):

Nonexpendable principal:
Cemetery funds 83,363            
Riverside Cemetery 38,461            
Laurette Files account 3,781              
North Raymond Cemetery 4,889              
Carlton E. Edwards scholarship 15,852            
George Woods scholarship 19,585            
Collins-Day scholarship 13,580            
Alva Clough scholarship 5,122              
Torstein Johannas Lund scholarship 2,928              
Ministerial fund 2,175              
Recreation fund 10,050            
Spiegel fund 25,000            

Expendable principal:
Cemetery funds 96,481            
Riverside Cemetery 46,480            
Laurette Files account 20,759            
North Raymond Cemetery 7,302              
Carlton E. Edwards scholarship 15,775            
George Woods scholarship 12,059            
Collins-Day scholarship 3,848              
Alva Clough scholarship 1,316              
Torstein Johannas Lund scholarship 7,093              
Ministerial fund 42,098            
Recreation fund 10,392            
Spiegel fund 45,214            

2,570,113$    

 
NOTE 11 - NONSPENDABLE FUND BALANCES 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the Town had the following nonspendable fund balances: 

General fund:
Prepaid items 124,707$       
Tax acquired property 135,548         

Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule E) 9,531              
Nonmajor permanent funds (Schedule I) 224,786         

494,572$       

 



TOWN OF RAYMOND, MAINE 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 

42 

 
NOTE 12 - RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES 
  

At June 30, 2024, the Town had the following restricted fund balances: 

Bond fund 995,694$       
Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule E) 1,040,816      
Nonmajor permanent funds (Schedule I) 308,817         

2,345,327$    

 
NOTE 13 - COMMITTED FUND BALANCES 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the Town had the following committed fund balances: 

Nonmajor capital projects funds (Schedule G) 943,475$       

 
NOTE 14 - ASSIGNED FUND BALANCES 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the Town had the following assigned fund balances: 

General fund:
FY25 budget 200,000$       
Health insurance reserve 94,380            
RSU withdrawal committee 10,315            

Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule E) 8,193              
312,888$       

 
NOTE 15 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the Town had the following deficit fund balances: 

Backpack program 618$               
Keep Maine healthy 1,650              

2,268$            

 
  



TOWN OF RAYMOND, MAINE 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 

43 

 
NOTE 16 - OVERLAPPING DEBT 
 
 The Town is responsible for its proportionate share of Cumberland County and 
Portland Water District debt.  As of June 30, 2024, the Town’s share was:  
 

Outstanding Town’s Total
Debt Percentage Share

County of Cumberland 7,389,442$      2.31% 170,696$       
Portland Water District 65,451,334      3.64% 2,382,429      

 
NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

 
MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 
PARTICIPATING LOCAL DISTRICT CONSOLIDATED PLAN 

 
Plan Description 

 
 Town employees contribute to the Maine Public Employees Retirement System 
(MainePERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established 
by the Maine State Legislature.  Title 5 of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated assigns 
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the Participating Local District 
(PLD) Consolidated Plan‘s advisory group, which reviews the terms of the plan and 
periodically makes recommendations to the Legislature to amend the terms.  The Maine 
Public Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the 
Consolidated Plan.  That report may be obtained online at www.mainepers.org or by 
contacting the System at (207) 512-3100. 

 
 Benefits Provided 
 

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System provides retirement and 
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members 
and beneficiaries.  The System's retirement programs provide defined retirement benefits 
based on members' average final compensation and service credit earned as of 
retirement.  Vesting (i.e., eligibility for benefits upon reaching qualification) occurs upon 
the earning of five years of service credit (effective October 1, 1999, the prior ten-year 
requirement was reduced by legislative action to five years for employees of PLDs). In 
some cases, vesting occurs on the earning of one year of service credit immediately 
preceding retirement at or after normal retirement age. For PLD members, normal 
retirement age is 60 or 65. The monthly benefit of members who retire before normal 
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NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
retirement age by virtue of having at least 25 years of service credit is reduced by a 
statutorily prescribed factor for each year of age that a member is below her/his normal 
retirement age at retirement. The System also provides disability and death benefits 
which are established by contract with other PLD employers under applicable statutory 
provisions.  As of June 30, 2023, there were 327 employers in the plan. 

 
Upon termination of membership, members' accumulated employee contributions 

are refundable with interest, credited in accordance with statute. Withdrawal of 
accumulated contributions results in forfeiture of all benefits and membership rights. The 
annual rate of interest credited to members' accounts is set by the System's Board of 
Trustees and is currently 3.88%. 
 

Contributions  
 

Retirement benefits are funded by contributions from members and employers and 
by earnings on investments. Disability and death benefits are funded by employer normal 
cost contributions and by investment earnings.  The Town’s 3C plan members are 
required to contribute 9.3% of their annual covered salary.  The Town is required to 
contribute at an actuarially determined rate.  The current rate is 12.8% for the 3C plan of 
covered payroll.  The contribution rates of plan members and the Town are established 
and may be amended by the Maine Public Employee Retirement Systems advisory group. 
The Town’s contribution to the MainePERS PLD Consolidated Plan for the year ended 
June 30, 2024 was $88,168.   
 

Pension Liabilities 
 
 PLD Consolidated Plan 
 

At June 30, 2024, the Town reported a liability of $0 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liabilities for the plan. The net pension liabilities were measured as of 
June 30, 2023, and the total pension liabilities used to calculate the net pension liabilities 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town’s proportion of the 
net pension liabilities were based on a projection of the Town’s long-term share of 
contributions to each pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all PLDs, 
actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2023, the Town’s proportion was 0.0%. 
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NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Town recognized total pension expense of 

$0 for the PLD plan.  At June 30, 2024, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
experience -$                           -$                          

Changes of assumptions -                             -                            
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments -                             -                            
Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and proportionate
share of contributions -                             -                            

Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 88,168                  -                            

Total 88,168$                -$                          

PLD Plan

 
$88,168 for the PLD plan was reported as deferred outflows of resources related 

to pensions resulting from Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will 
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the years ended June 30, 2025.  
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

PLD
Plan

Plan year ended June 30:
2024 -$                           
2025 -                             
2026 -                             
2027 -                             
2028 -                             
Thereafter -                             
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NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
 Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 

The respective collective total pension liability for the plans was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023, using the following methods and assumptions 
applied to all periods included in the measurement:   
 

Actuarial Cost Method 
 

The Entry Age Normal cost method is used to determine costs. Under this cost 
method, the total employer contribution rate consists of two elements: the normal cost 
rate and the unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) rate.   
 

The individual entry age normal method is used to determine liabilities. Under the 
individual entry age normal method, a normal cost rate is calculated for each employee. 
This rate is determined by taking the value, as of age at entry into the plan, of the 
member's projected future benefits and dividing it by the value, also as of the member's 
entry age, of their expected future salary. The normal cost for each member is the product 
of the member’s pay and normal cost rate. The normal cost for the group is the sum of 
the normal costs for all members.   
 

Experience gains and losses, i.e., decreases or increases in liabilities and/or in 
assets when actual experience differs from the actuarial assumptions, affect the unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability. 
 

Asset Valuation Method 
 

The actuarial valuation employs a technique for determining the actuarial value of 
assets which reduces the impact of short-term volatility in the market value.  The specific 
technique adopted in this valuation recognizes in a given year one-third of the investment 
return that is different from the actuarial assumption for investment return. 

 
Amortization 

 
The net pension liability of the PLD Consolidated Plan is amortized on a level 

percentage of payroll using a method where a separate twenty-year closed period is 
established annually for the gain or loss for that year. 

 
Significant actuarial assumptions employed by the actuary for funding purposes as 

of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Investment Rate of Return - 6.50% per annum for the year ended June 30, 2023 
and 2022, compounded annually. 
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NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

Salary Increases, Merit and Inflation - 2.75% to 11.48% per year 
 

Mortality Rates - For the plan, the rates are based on the 2010 Public Plan General 
Benefits-Weighted Healthy Retiree Mortality Table, for males and females, 
projected generationally using the RPEC_2020 model.  
 
Cost of Living Benefit Increases - 1.91% 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 

determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected 
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major class of assets. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
pension plan's target asset allocation as June 30, 2023 are summarized in the following 
table.   

Long-term
Expected

Target Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return

Public equities 30.0% 6.0%
US Government 7.5% 2.6%
Private equity 15.0% 7.6%
Real assets:

Real estate 10.0% 5.2%
Infrastructure 10.0% 5.3%
Natural resources 5.0% 5.0%

Traditional credit 7.5% 3.0%
Alternative credit 5.0% 7.2%
Diversifiers 10.0% 5.0%

 
 Discount Rate 
 

The discount rate used to measure the collective total pension liability was 6.50% 
for 2023 for the Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and 
that employer and non-employer entity contributions will be made at contractually 
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
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NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 
 

The following table shows how the collective net pension liability as of June 30, 
2023 would change if the discount rate used was one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than the current rate. The current rate is 6.50% for the Plan. 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

PLD Plan:
Discount rate 5.50% 6.50% 7.50%

Town's proportionate share of the net pension
liability/(asset) -$                           -$                          -$                          

 
 Changes in Net Pension Liability 
 

Each employer’s share of the collective net pension liability is equal to the 
collective net pension liability multiplied by the employer’s proportionate share as of June 
30, 2023 as shown in the schedules of employer and non-employer contributing entity 
allocations. Changes in net pension liability are recognized in pension expense for the 
year ended June 30, 2023 with the following exceptions. 

 
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 

 
The difference between expected and actual experience with regard to economic 

or demographic factors is recognized in pension expense using a straight-line 
amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining 
service lives of active and inactive members in each plan. The first year is recognized as 
pension expense and the remaining years are shown as either deferred outflows of 
resources or deferred inflows of resources. For 2023 through 2020, this was three years 
for the PLD Consolidated Plan. For 2019, this was four years for the PLD Consolidated 
Plan. For 2018 and 2017, this was three years; prior to 2017, this was four years for the 
PLD Consolidated Plan. 
 

Differences between Expected and Actual Investment Earnings 
 

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are recognized in 
pension expense using a straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year period. 
The first year is recognized as pension expense and the remaining years are shown as 
either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources.  
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NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

Changes in Assumptions 
 

Differences due to changes in assumptions about future economic or demographic 
factors or other inputs are recognized in pension expense using a straight-line 
amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining 
service lives of active and inactive members in each plan.  The actuarial assumptions 
used for the year ended June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020.  The first year is 
recognized as pension expense and the remaining years are shown as either deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. Please refer to the Actuarial 
Methods and Assumptions section for information relating to the use of assumptions.   

 
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Employer Contributions and 

Proportionate Share of Contributions 
 

Differences resulting from a change in proportionate share of contributions and 
differences between total employer contributions and the employer's proportionate share 
of contributions are recognized in pension expense using a straight-line amortization 
method over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining service lives of 
active and inactive members in each plan. The first year is recognized as pension 
expense and the remaining years are shown as either deferred outflows of resources or 
deferred inflows of resources. Differences between total employer contributions and the 
employer's proportionate share of contributions may arise when an employer has a 
contribution requirement for an employer specific liability. 

 
 Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
 Additional financial and actuarial information with respect to the Plan can be found 
in the MainePERS' 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report available online at 
www.mainepers.org or by contacting the System at (207) 512-3100 
 
NOTE 18 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
 

MissionSquare Retirement 
 

The Town of Raymond provides retirement pension plan for its employees through 
a deferred compensation plan. 
 

The government offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created on 
November 17, 1992 in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.  The plan, 
available to all government employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until 
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NOTE 18 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED) 
 
future years. Participation in the plan is optional. Currently, twenty-four employees 
participate in the International City/County Management Association Retirement 
Corporation (ICMA-RC) (now known as Mission Square) plan.  The deferred 
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or 
unforeseeable emergency.  All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all 
property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those 
amounts, property or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other 
beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the government subject only to the claims of 
the government's general creditors.  Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those 
of a general creditor of the government in an amount equal to the fair market value of the 
deferred account for each participant.  It is the opinion of the government's legal counsel 
that the government has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of 
due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor.  The government believes 
it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future. 
 

The Town of Raymond, under ICMA 457 Deferred Compensation Plan (now known 
as Mission Square), contributes 1.00% - 6% of the employee’s annual salary for regular 
full-time employees, after six months of employment for employees who contribute as 
least as much as the Town contributes. Contributions by the town are based on length of 
employment. Employees eligible to receive family health care benefits but electing not to 
take advantage of the employee benefit will be eligible to receive one-half the cash value 
(up to a dollar value of $3,454 family or $2,413 two person) of the difference in cost  
between the family plan and the single subscriber plan. This benefit will be paid in the 
form of an increased retirement contribution to qualified programs outlined in personnel 
policy or utilized toward the cost of Town sponsored life insurance premiums. Currently, 
five employees receive an additional match to their deferred compensation plan. 
Investments are managed by the plan's trustee under several different investment 
options. The choice of the investment options is made by the participants.  Total eligible 
pension plan wages were $1,346,370 for the year ended June 30, 2024. Total 
contributions on behalf of the Town amounted to $111,643. Eligible wages and employer 
contributions for the current and past five years are as follows: 

 
Employer 

contribution Employer Eligible 
Year rate contributions wages

2024 1.00%-6.00% 111,643$      1,346,370$   
2023 1.00%-6.00% 115,186         1,481,675     
2022 1.00%-6.00% 75,971           1,134,142     
2021 1.00%-6.00% 71,643           1,072,935     
2020 1.00%-6.00% 53,446           864,640          
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NOTE 19 - EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

At June 30, 2024, the Town had the following overspent appropriations: 

General government (Article 4) 202,168$   
Public safety (Article 6) 115,146  

317,314$   

NOTE 20 - EXTRAORDINARY AND SPECIAL ITEMS 

The Town was awarded a legal settlement in the year ended June 30, 2024 in the 
amount of $540,000 related to a multi-year litigation which was received during the year. 

Also in the year ended June 30, 2024 the Town received a premium on bond 
issuance related to the 2023 general obligation bond issued November 21, 2023. 
Associated bond administrative issuance costs were expensed and applied against the 
bond premium as allowable.   

NOTE 21 - JOINT VENTURES 

The Town is a member of an interlocal solid waste agreement with 11 other 
participating municipalities. Maine Waste to Energy is a quasi-governmental organization, 
created as a not-for-profit corporation by twelve area municipalities in 1986.  The Town 
of Raymond’s proportionate interest in the net position of Maine Waste to Energy on June 
30, 2023 (the most recent information available), was approximately 6.75% which 
amounted to $578,034.  As this interest does not constitute an explicit measurable equity 
interest, however, it is not recorded as an asset by the Town. Complete financial 
statements may be obtained from Maine Waste to Energy at 110 Goldthwaite Road, 
Auburn, ME 04211-1750 or calling 207-783-8805. 

NOTE 22 - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT 

On March 20, 1999, the Town of Raymond voters designated certain property 
along the Portland Natural Gas Transmission System as a municipal development and 
tax increment financing (TIF) district pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes. The TIF 
district will be utilized to facilitate economic and community development within the Town 
of Raymond’s business district. 

The Town will retain the net new property tax generated by new investment in the 
TIF district for the activities that will provide new employment and community 
development opportunities and/or improve and broaden the tax base.  Over the 30-year 
life of the TIF, approximately $2.5 million will be generated. 
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NOTE 23 - CONTINGENCIES  
 
 With regard to pending legal claims or any unasserted claims, it is not feasible at 
this time to predict or determine their outcome.  Management believes, however, that 
settlement amounts, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the Town’s financial 
position. 
 
 The Town participates in various intergovernmental grant programs which may be 
subject to future program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.  
Accordingly, the Town’s compliance with applicable grant requirement may be 
established at some future date.  The amount, if any, of any liabilities arising from the 
disallowance of expenditures or ineligibility of grant revenues cannot be determined at 
this time. 
 
NOTE 24 - RISK MANAGEMENT  
 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the Town 
carries commercial insurance. 

 
Based on the coverage provided by the insurance purchased, the Town is not 

aware of any material actual or potential claim liabilities which should be recorded as of 
June 30, 2024.  There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from that of 
the prior year and amounts of settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in the 
past three years. 
 
NOTE 25 - RELATED PARTIES 
 

A selectboard member owns Innovative Distribution Services which the Town paid 
$62,451 to provide mowing services in FY 2024. 
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NOTE 26 - RESTATEMENTS 
 
 During fiscal year 2024, the Town determined corrections were needed to correct 
Tax Increment Fund and General Fund fund balances and to reclassify ARPA funds to 
deferred revenue, which resulted in adjustments to and restatements of beginning net 
position for governmental activities and fund balances, as follows: 

6/30/2023
As Previously 6/30/2023

Reported Corrections As Restated

Government-Wide
Governmental Activities 11,010,456$  (292,595)$      10,717,861$  
Business-type Activities 52,920            -                       52,920            

Total Government-Wide 11,063,376$  (292,595)$      10,770,781$  

Governmental Funds
Major Funds:

General Fund 3,001,709$    (266,043)$      2,735,666$    

Other Governmental Funds:
Nonmajor Special Revenue 954,470         (26,552)          927,918         
Nonmajor Capital Projects 674,909         -                       674,909         
Nonmajor Permanent 462,109         -                       462,109         

Total Governmental Funds 5,093,197$    (292,595)$      4,800,602$    
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Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures 
that are required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board but are not considered 
a part of the basic financial statements.  Such information includes: 
 

● Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual -
General Fund 

 
● Schedule of Contributions - Pension 
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Variance
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1, Restated 2,735,666$      2,735,666$      2,735,666$      -$                   
Resources (Inflows):

General tax revenue 18,142,968      18,142,968      18,218,970      76,002            
Intergovernmental revenue 951,986          951,986          1,025,442       73,456            
Charges for services 482,600          482,600          531,170          48,570            
Investment income 14,720            14,720            153,397          138,677          
Other revenue 120,071          120,071          79,411            (40,660)           
Transfers from other funds 34,000            34,000            34,000            -                     

Amounts Available for Appropriation 22,482,011      22,482,011      22,778,056      296,045          

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
General government 1,443,276       1,518,276       1,647,778       (129,502)         
Public safety 1,281,432       1,281,432       1,396,578       (115,146)         
Public works 1,328,456       1,328,456       1,240,569       87,887            
Fringe benefits 895,661          895,661          961,998          (66,337)           
Public health and welfare 15,000            15,000            21,060            (6,060)             
Community services 370,671          370,671          357,090          13,581            
Education 11,940,729      11,940,729      11,940,729      -                     
County tax 974,325          974,325          974,325          -                     
Debt service:

Principal 315,213          315,213          315,213          -                     
Interest 26,288            26,288            26,287            1                    

Overlay 48,099            48,099            -                     48,099            
Transfers to other funds 1,282,195       1,282,195       1,282,195       -                     

Total Charges to Appropriations 19,921,345      19,996,345      20,163,822      (167,477)         

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 2,560,666$      2,485,666$      2,614,234$      128,568$        

Utilization of unassigned fund balance 175,000$        175,000$        -$                   (175,000)$       
Utilization of assigned fund balance -                     75,000            -                     (75,000)           

175,000$        250,000$        -$                   (250,000)$       

Budgeted Amounts
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2024
PLD Plan:

Contractually required contribution 88,168$         
Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution (88,168)          

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    

Covered payroll 688,814$       
Contributions as a percentage of covered

payroll 12.80%

*  The amounts presented for each fiscal year are for those years for which 
information is available.
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Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial 
statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis. 

 
● Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and 

Actual - General Fund Revenues 
 

● Schedule of Departmental Operations - General Fund 
 
● Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

 
● Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 

Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds  
 
  ● Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds  
 

● Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

 
● Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds  

 
● Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 

Balances - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 
 

● Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Permanent Funds 
 
● Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 

Balances - Nonmajor Permanent Funds 
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Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
General tax revenues:

Property taxes 16,932,468$       16,932,468$       16,885,034$       (47,434)$            
Vehicle excise taxes 1,180,000          1,180,000          1,303,221          123,221             
Boat excise taxes 30,500               30,500               30,715               215                   

Intergovernmental revenues:
Homestead exemption 246,133             246,133             246,133             -                       
State revenue sharing 464,260             464,260             486,157             21,897               
BETE 50,161               50,161               50,211               50                     
Tree growth 8,769                8,769                9,385                616                   
Veterans 3,290                3,290                1,143                (2,147)               
LRAP 53,600               53,600               61,496               7,896                
General assistance 10,500               10,500               18,257               7,757                
Snowmobile 2,350                2,350                1,960                (390)                  
Senior stabilization 112,923             112,923             113,169             246                   
Education refund -                       -                       37,531               37,531               

Charges for services:
Recreation fees 500                   500                   -                       (500)                  
Library fees -                       -                       296                   296                   
Town clerk fees 29,000               29,000               33,535               4,535                
CEO/planning fees 140,000             140,000             212,782             72,782               
Solid waste/recycling 100                   100                   110                   10                     
Fire/rescue collections 220,000             220,000             263,691             43,691               
Public safety 15,000               15,000               16,406               1,406                
Animal control 1,000                1,000                1,715                715                   
Public works 74,000               74,000               -                       (74,000)              
Fire permits 3,000                3,000                2,635                (365)                  

Investment income:
Investment income 14,720               14,720               153,397             138,677             

Other income:
Interest/fees on taxes 42,800               42,800               39,379               (3,421)               
Payment in lieu of taxes 5,000                5,000                5,000                -                       
Cable franchise fees 40,400               40,400               19,206               (21,194)              
Misc grants 24,871               24,871               -                       (24,871)              
Other 7,000                7,000                15,826               8,826                

Transfers from other funds:
Special revenue funds 30,000               30,000               30,000               -                       
Permanent funds 4,000                4,000                4,000                -                       

TOTAL REVENUES 19,746,345$       19,746,345$       20,042,390$       296,045$           
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Variance
Budget Final Positive

Budget Adjustments Available Actual (Negative)
General government

Administration 632,487$            75,000$             707,487$            850,291$            (142,804)$           
Compensation and training 75,000               -                        75,000               75,000               -                        
Insurance 154,200             -                        154,200             164,135             (9,935)                
Assessing 83,437               -                        83,437               75,687               7,750                 
Municipal building 46,000               -                        46,000               40,146               5,854                 
Technology 226,260             -                        226,260             228,272             (2,012)                
Code enforcement 225,892             -                        225,892             214,247             11,645               

1,443,276           75,000               1,518,276           1,647,778           (129,502)            

Public safety
Fire department 1,239,271           -                        1,239,271           1,358,760           (119,489)            
Animal control 42,161               -                        42,161               37,818               4,343                 

1,281,432           -                        1,281,432           1,396,578           (115,146)            

Public works
Public works 930,356             -                        930,356             829,088             101,268             
Solid waste 398,100             -                        398,100             411,481             (13,381)              

1,328,456           -                        1,328,456           1,240,569           87,887               

Fringe benefits 895,661             -                        895,661             961,998             (66,337)              

Public health and welfare 15,000               -                        15,000               21,060               (6,060)                

Community services
Provider agencies 1,000                 -                        1,000                 500                    500                    
Raymond Village library 161,403             -                        161,403             158,279             3,124                 
Cemetery 45,184               -                        45,184               40,812               4,372                 
Recreation 163,084             -                        163,084             157,499             5,585                 

370,671             -                        370,671             357,090             13,581               

Education 11,940,729         -                        11,940,729         11,940,729         -                        

County tax 974,325             -                        974,325             974,325             -                        

Debt service
Principal 315,213             -                        315,213             315,213             -                        
Interest 26,288               -                        26,288               26,287               1                       

341,501             -                        341,501             341,500             1                       

Overlay 48,099               -                        48,099               -                        48,099               

Transfers to other funds
Special revenue funds 352,195             -                        352,195             352,195             -                        
Capital projects funds 930,000             -                        930,000             930,000             -                        

1,282,195           -                        1,282,195           1,282,195           -                        

Total Departmental Operations 19,921,345$       75,000$             19,996,345$       20,163,822$       (167,477)$           
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Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Projects Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 203,852$        -$                   2,515$            206,367$        
Investments -                     -                     538,988          538,988          
Accounts receivable (net of allowance -                     

for uncollectibles) -                     3,132              -                     3,132              
Prepaid items 9,531              -                     -                     9,531              
Due from other funds 1,162,417       940,343          -                     2,102,760       

TOTAL ASSETS 1,375,800$      943,475$        541,503$        2,860,778$      

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 6,826$            -$                   -$                   6,826$            
Due to other funds 19,308            -                     7,900              27,208            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,134            -                     7,900              34,034            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Deferred revenue 293,394          -                     -                     293,394          
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 293,394          -                     -                     293,394          

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 9,531              -                     224,786          234,317          
Restricted 1,040,816       -                     308,817          1,349,633       
Committed -                     943,475          -                     943,475          
Assigned 8,193              -                     -                     8,193              
Unassigned (deficits) (2,268)             -                     -                     (2,268)             

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,056,272       943,475          533,603          2,533,350       

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 1,375,800$      943,475$        541,503$        2,860,778$      
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Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Projects Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues 113,976$        -$                   -$                   113,976$        
Charges for services 72,561            -                     -                     72,561            
Investment income, net of unrealized gains/(losses) -                     -                     77,994            77,994            
Interest income 8,193              -                     -                     8,193              
Other income 102,108          -                     -                     102,108          

TOTAL REVENUES 296,838          -                     77,994            374,832          

EXPENDITURES
Debt service:

Principal 11,613            -                     -                     11,613            
Capital outlay 109,596          643,579           -                     753,175          
Other 274,174          17,855            2,500              294,529          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 395,383          661,434           2,500              1,059,317       

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (98,545)           (661,434)          75,494            (684,485)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 352,195          930,000           -                     1,282,195       
Transfers (out) (125,296)         -                     (4,000)             (129,296)         

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 226,899          930,000           (4,000)             1,152,899       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 128,354          268,566           71,494            468,414          

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, AS PREVIOUSLY
REPORTED 954,470          674,909           462,109          2,091,488       

FUND BALANCE CORRECTIONS (26,552)           -                     -                     (26,552)           

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, AS RESTATED 927,918          674,909           462,109          2,064,936       

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 1,056,272$      943,475$         533,603$        2,533,350$      
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Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources (other than expendable trusts or for major capital projects) that are legally restricted 
to expenditures for specific purposes. 
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Community Panther
Grants Parks and Assistance Veteran's Beautification Pond Conservation Economic
Other Library Recreation ARPA Fund Memorial Committee Projects Commission Development

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents -$                -$                -$                203,852$      -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                
Prepaid items -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Due from other funds 73,859         90,208         131,715        -                  59,044         4,457           3,065           1,268           1,640           1,240           

TOTAL ASSETS 73,859$        90,208$        131,715$      203,852$      59,044$        4,457$         3,065$         1,268$         1,640$         1,240$         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                -$                6,826$         -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                
Due to other funds -                  -                  -                  17,040         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

TOTAL LIABILITIES -                  -                  6,826           17,040         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Deferred revenue -                  -                  114,775        178,619        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES -                  -                  114,775        178,619        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Restricted 73,859         90,208         10,114         -                  59,044         4,457           3,065           1,268           1,640           1,240           
Committed -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Assigned -                  -                  -                  8,193           -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Unassigned -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 73,859         90,208         10,114         8,193           59,044         4,457           3,065           1,268           1,640           1,240           

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 73,859$        90,208$        131,715$      203,852$      59,044$        4,457$         3,065$         1,268$         1,640$         1,240$         
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Fire Tax Keep
Forestry Age Friendly Community Department Increment Backpack Maine

Grant Revaluation Raymond Celebration Donations Financing Program Healthy Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 203,852$      
Prepaid items -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   9,531            -                   -                   9,531            
Due from other funds 500              288,872        1,018            1,455            100              503,976        -                   -                   1,162,417     

TOTAL ASSETS 500$             288,872$      1,018$          1,455$          100$             513,507$      -$                 -$                 1,375,800$    

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 6,826$          
Due to other funds -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   618              1,650            19,308          

TOTAL LIABILITIES -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   618              1,650            26,134          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Deferred revenue -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   293,394        
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   293,394        

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   9,531            -                   -                   9,531            
Restricted 500              288,872        1,018            1,455            100              503,976        -                   -                   1,040,816     
Committed -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Assigned -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   8,193            
Unassigned -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (618)             (1,650)           (2,268)           

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 500              288,872        1,018            1,455            100              513,507        (618)             (1,650)           1,056,272     

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 500$             288,872$      1,018$          1,455$          100$             513,507$      -$                 -$                 1,375,800$    
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Community Panther
Grants Parks and Assistance Veteran's Beautification Pond Conservation Economic
Other Library Recreation ARPA Fund Memorial Committee Projects Commission Development

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue -$                  -$                  -$                  113,976$       -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
Charges for services -                   -                   72,561           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Interest income -                   -                   -                   8,193            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Other income 71,970           -                   2,104            -                   15,551           50                 2,270            -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL REVENUES 71,970           -                   74,665           122,169         15,551           50                 2,270            -                   -                   -                   

EXPENDITURES
Debt service:

Principal -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Capital outlay -                   -                   -                   16,827           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Other -                   10,320           85,935           1,853            7,994            -                   2,244            -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                   10,320           85,935           18,680           7,994            -                   2,244            -                   -                   -                   

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 71,970           (10,320)          (11,270)          103,489         7,557            50                 26                 -                   -                   -                   

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Transfers (out) -                   (30,000)          -                   (95,296)          -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                   (30,000)          -                   (95,296)          -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 71,970           (40,320)          (11,270)          8,193            7,557            50                 26                 -                   -                   -                   

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JULY 1, AS
PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 1,889            130,528         21,384           292,595         51,487           4,407            3,039            1,268            1,640            1,240            

FUND BALANCE CORRECTIONS -                   -                   -                   (292,595)        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JULY 1, AS RESTATED 1,889            130,528         21,384           -                   51,487           4,407            3,039            1,268            1,640            1,240            

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 73,859$         90,208$         10,114$         8,193$           59,044$         4,457$           3,065$           1,268$           1,640$           1,240$           

 
 



SCHEDULE F (CONTINUED) 
TOWN OF RAYMOND, MAINE 

 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements. 
66 

Fire Tax Keep
Forestry Age Friendly Community Department Increment Backpack Maine

Grant Revaluation Raymond Celebration Donations Financing Program Healthy Total
REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenue -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 113,976$       
Charges for services -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   72,561          
Interest income -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   8,193            
Other income -                   8,972            -                   1,191            -                   -                   -                   -                   102,108        

TOTAL REVENUES -                   8,972            -                   1,191            -                   -                   -                   -                   296,838        

EXPENDITURES
Debt service:

Principal -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   11,613          -                   -                   11,613          
Capital outlay -                   -                   -                   -                   8,000            84,769          -                   -                   109,596        
Other -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   165,828        -                   -                   274,174        

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                   -                   -                   -                   8,000            262,210        -                   -                   395,383        

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES -                   8,972            -                   1,191            (8,000)           (262,210)       -                   -                   (98,545)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                   80,000          -                   -                   -                   272,195        -                   -                   352,195        
Transfers (out) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (125,296)       

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)                    -           80,000                    -                    -                    -         272,195                    -                    -         226,899 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) -                   88,972          -                   1,191            (8,000)           9,985            -                   -                   128,354        

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JULY 1, AS
PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 500               199,900        1,018            264               8,100            237,479        (618)              (1,650)           954,470        

FUND BALANCE CORRECTIONS -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   266,043        -                   -                   (26,552)         

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JULY 1, AS RESTATED 500               199,900        1,018            264               8,100            503,522        (618)              (1,650)           927,918        

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 500$             288,872$       1,018$          1,455$          100$             513,507$       (618)$            (1,650)$         1,056,272$    
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Capital projects funds are established to account for financial resources to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by 
proprietary or trust funds.
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Fire Public Patricia Ave. Public
Department Works Paving Sidewalk Recreational Works Snow

Reserve Reserve Match Facilities Technology Equipment
ASSETS

Accounts receivable (net of allowance
for uncollectibles) -$             -$               -$            -$                 -$             -$                

Due from other funds 112,950    258,866       41,734     21,138          246,946    1,972           
TOTAL ASSETS 112,950$  258,866$     41,734$   21,138$        246,946$   1,972$         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$             -$               -$            -$                 -$             -$                

TOTAL LIABILITIES -               -                 -             -                  -               -                  

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable -               -                 -             -                  -               -                  
Restricted -               -                 -             -                  -               -                  
Committed 112,950    258,866       41,734     21,138          246,946    1,972           
Assigned -               -                 -             -                  -               -                  
Unassigned -               -                 -             -                  -               -                  

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 112,950    258,866       41,734     21,138          246,946    1,972           

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES 112,950$  258,866$     41,734$   21,138$        246,946$   1,972$         
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Public Fire Fire Assessing Water Sheri
Works Department Department Software Watch Gagnon

Equipment Review Fees IRT Projects Reserve Account Park
ASSETS

Accounts receivable (net of allowance
for uncollectibles) -$               -$               -$              -$              -$             -$              

Due from other funds 103,061      13,255        6,456         5,000         4,161        16             
TOTAL ASSETS 103,061$     13,255$      6,456$       5,000$       4,161$      16$            

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds -$               -$               -$              -$              -$             -$              

TOTAL LIABILITIES -                 -                -                -                -               -                

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable -                 -                -                -                -               -                
Restricted -                 -                -                -                -               -                
Committed 103,061      13,255        6,456         5,000         4,161        16             
Assigned -                 -                -                -                -               -                
Unassigned -                 -                -                -                -               -                

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 103,061      13,255        6,456         5,000         4,161        16             

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES 103,061$     13,255$      6,456$       5,000$       4,161$      16$            
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Hazardous Town Hall Open
Waste Municipal Feasibility Land Space

Reserve Facilities Study Playground Improvements Reserve Total
ASSETS

Accounts receivable (net of allowance
for uncollectibles) -$               -$               -$               3,132$          -$                -$                3,132$        

Due from other funds 2,971          50,649        213            32,248          10,000         28,707         940,343       
TOTAL ASSETS 2,971$        50,649$      213$           35,380$        10,000$       28,707$       943,475$     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$               -$               -$               -$                 -$                -$                -$               

TOTAL LIABILITIES -                 -                 -                 -                   -                  -                  -                 

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable -                 -                 -                 -                   -                  -                  -                 
Restricted -                 -                 -                 -                   -                  -                  -                 
Committed 2,971          50,649        213            35,380          10,000         28,707         943,475       
Assigned -                 -                 -                 -                   -                  -                  -                 
Unassigned -                 -                 -                 -                   -                  -                  -                 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 2,971          50,649        213            35,380          10,000         28,707         943,475       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES 2,971$        50,649$      213$           35,380$        10,000$       28,707$       943,475$     
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Fire Public Patricia Ave. Public
Department Works Paving Sidewalk Recreational Works Snow

Reserve Reserve Match Facilities Technology Equipment
REVENUES

Other income -$             -$                 -$            -$                 -$             -$                
TOTAL REVENUES -               -                  -             -                  -               -                  

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay -               310,717        -             -                  -               -                  
Other -               -                  -             -                  17,855      -                  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -               310,717        -             -                  17,855      -                  

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES -               (310,717)       -             -                  (17,855)     -                  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 75,000      410,000        -             -                  100,000    -                  
Transfers (out) -               -                  -             -                  -               -                  

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 75,000      410,000        -             -                  100,000    -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 75,000      99,283          -             -                  82,145      -                  

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1 37,950      159,583        41,734     21,138          164,801    1,972           

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 112,950$  258,866$      41,734$   21,138$        246,946$   1,972$         
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Public Fire Fire Assessing Water Sheri
Works Department Department Software Watch Gagnon

Equipment Review Fees IRT Projects Reserve Account Park
REVENUES

Other income -$               -$                  -$               -$               -$                -$                
TOTAL REVENUES -                 -                    -                 -                 -                 -                  

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 202,800      -                    -                 -                 -                 -                  
Other -                 -                    -                 -                 -                 -                  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 202,800      -                    -                 -                 -                 -                  

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (202,800)     -                    -                 -                 -                 -                  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 225,000      -                    -                 -                 -                 -                  
Transfers (out) -                 -                    -                 -                 -                 -                  

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 225,000      -                    -                 -                 -                 -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 22,200        -                    -                 -                 -                 -                  

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1 80,861        13,255           6,456          5,000          4,161          16                

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 103,061$     13,255$         6,456$        5,000$        4,161$         16$              
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Hazardous Town Hall Open
Waste Municipal Feasibility Land Space

Reserve Facilities Study Playground Improvements Reserve Total
REVENUES

Other income -$               -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$              -$              
TOTAL REVENUES -                 -                   -                   -                   -                 -                -                

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay -                 67,842          -                   62,220          -                 -                643,579      
Other -                 -                   -                   -                   -                 -                17,855       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                 67,842          -                   62,220          -                 -                661,434      

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES -                 (67,842)         -                   (62,220)         -                 -                (661,434)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                 85,000          -                   35,000          -                 -                930,000      
Transfers (out) -                 -                   -                   -                   -                 -                -                

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                 85,000          -                   35,000          -                 -                930,000      

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -                 17,158          -                   (27,220)         -                 -                268,566      

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1 2,971          33,491          213               62,600          10,000        28,707       674,909      

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 2,971$        50,649$        213$             35,380$         10,000$      28,707$      943,475$    

 
 



Permanent Funds 

74 

 Permanent funds are used to account for assets held by the Town of Raymond, Maine 
that are legally restricted pursuant to Title 30-A, §5653 of the Maine State Statutes, as 
amended and unless otherwise specified, only earnings and not principal, may be used for 
purposes that benefit the Town or its citizenry.  These funds have been established for 
various purposes including the preservation and/or maintenance of cemeteries. 
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Laurette North Carlton E. George
Cemetery Riverside Files Raymond Edwards Woods

Funds Cemetery Account Cemetery Scholarship Scholarship
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 856$             396$             114$             57$               159$             147$             
Investments 183,464       84,765          24,489          12,166          34,057          31,578          

TOTAL ASSETS 184,320$     85,161$       24,603$       12,223$       34,216$       31,725$       

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds 4,476$          220$             63$               32$               2,589$          81$               

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,476            220               63                 32                 2,589            81                 

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 83,363          38,461          3,781            4,889            15,852          19,585          
Restricted 96,481          46,480          20,759          7,302            15,775          12,059          
Committed -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Assigned -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Unassigned -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 179,844       84,941          24,540          12,191          31,627          31,644          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES 184,320$     85,161$       24,603$       12,223$       34,216$       31,725$       
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Alva Torstein
Collins-Day Clough Johannas Lund Ministerial Recreation Spiegel
Scholarship Scholarship Scholarship Fund Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 81$               30$               47$               206$             95$               327$             2,515$           
Investments 17,392          6,424            10,000          44,182          20,400          70,071          538,988        

TOTAL ASSETS 17,473$       6,454$          10,047$       44,388$       20,495$       70,398$       541,503$      

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds 45$               16$               26$               115$             53$               184$             7,900$           

TOTAL LIABILITIES 45                 16                 26                 115               53                 184               7,900             

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 13,580          5,122            2,928            2,175            10,050          25,000          224,786        
Restricted 3,848            1,316            7,093            42,098          10,392          45,214          308,817        
Committed -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      
Assigned -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      
Unassigned -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 17,428          6,438            10,021          44,273          20,442          70,214          533,603        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES 17,473$       6,454$          10,047$       44,388$       20,495$       70,398$       541,503$      
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Laurette North Carlton E. George
Cemetery Riverside Files Raymond Edwards Woods

Funds Cemetery Account Cemetery Scholarship Scholarship
REVENUES

Investment income, net of unrealized gains/(losses) 26,548$      12,266$      3,544$        1,760$        4,928$        4,570$        
TOTAL REVENUES 26,548        12,266        3,544          1,760          4,928          4,570          

EXPENDITURES
Other -                   -                   -                   -                   2,500          -                   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                   -                   -                   -                   2,500          -                   

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 26,548        12,266        3,544          1,760          2,428          4,570          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Transfers (out) (4,000)         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (4,000)         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 22,548        12,266        3,544          1,760          2,428          4,570          

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1 157,296      72,675        20,996        10,431        29,199        27,074        

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 179,844$    84,941$      24,540$      12,191$      31,627$      31,644$      
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Alva Torstein
Collins-Day Clough Johannas Lund Ministerial Recreation Spiegel
Scholarship Scholarship Scholarship Fund Fund Fund Total

REVENUES
Investment income, net of unrealized gains/(losses) 2,517$        930$           1,447$             6,393$        2,952$        10,139$      77,994$        

TOTAL REVENUES 2,517          930              1,447               6,393          2,952          10,139        77,994          

EXPENDITURES
Other -                   -                   -                        -                   -                   -                   2,500             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                   -                   -                        -                   -                   -                   2,500             

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 2,517          930              1,447               6,393          2,952          10,139        75,494          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                   -                   -                        -                   -                   -                   -                     
Transfers (out) -                   -                   -                        -                   -                   -                   (4,000)           

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                   -                   -                        -                   -                   -                   (4,000)           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 2,517          930              1,447               6,393          2,952          10,139        71,494          

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1 14,911        5,508          8,574               37,880        17,490        60,075        462,109        

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 17,428$      6,438$        10,021$          44,273$      20,442$      70,214$      533,603$      
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
Selectboard 
Town of Raymond 
Raymond, Maine 
 
 We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Raymond, Maine 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024 and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Raymond, Maine’s basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 29, 2025. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
the Town of Raymond, Maine’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) 
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Raymond, Maine’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town of Raymond, Maine’s internal control. 
 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the organization’s 
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 
 

 
3 Old Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093 

Tel: (800) 300-7708    (207) 929-4606 Fax: (207) 929-4609 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist 
that have not been identified. 
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Raymond, 
Maine’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 

that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  We noted certain 
other matters that we reported to the management of the Town of Raymond in a separate 
letter dated April 29, 2025. 

 
Purpose of this Report 
 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the organization’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Buxton, Maine 
April 29, 2025 
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